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OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (the “Bank”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (“OCBC Wing Hang"), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. Previously known as Banco Weng Hang, S.A.,
the Bank was established in 1941 and has approximately 500 employees.

OCBC Wing Hang, the former Wing Hang Bank, Limited became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC
Bank”) on 15 October 2014. OCBC Bank is the second largest financial
services group in Southeast Asia by assets and one of the world’s most
highly-rated banks, with Aal by Moody’s and AA- by both Fitch and S&P.
Recognised for its financial strength and stability, OCBC Bank is consistently
ranked among the World’'s Top 50 Safest Banks by Global Finance and
has been named Best Managed Bank in Singapore by The Asian Banker.
OCBC Bank is the longest established Singapore bank with an international
presence of more than 420 branches and representative offices in 19
countries and regions. OCBC Bank’s market-leading subsidiaries include
Great Eastern Holdings, the oldest and most established life insurance
group in Singapore and Malaysia; Lion Global Investors, one of the largest
private sector asset management companies in Southeast Asia; and Bank of
Singapore, which operates on a unique open-architecture product platform
to source for the best-in-class products to meet its clients’ goals.

OCBC Wing Hang, together with its subsidiaries and affiliated companies,
offers a comprehensive range of commercial banking products and services
and other financial services such as consumer financing, share brokerage and
insurance, among others. It has a network of over 60 branches and offices in
Hong Kong SAR, Macau SAR and Mainland China.

The Bank, as part of the OCBC Bank group of companies, offers customers
an augmented banking network, global market access and an extensive
range of products and services for personal and business financial needs. The
Bank has an AA- rating from Fitch as one of the most highly-rated banks in
Macau.
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At 31 December 2022

Shareholder
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
Incorporated in Hong Kong

Board of Directors
Chairman
Ms AU-YEUNG Lai Ling lvy

Directors

Mr CHAN Han Wo

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael

Mr LAU Hon Chuen

Mr CHEONG Kin Hong (retired on 31 December 2022)
Mr LOU Pou Hong (appointed on 1 January 2023)

Supervisory Council
Ms TAM Ha Kei Abby

Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah

Mr QUIN Va

General Meeting Committee

Mr CHEONG Kin Hong (retired on 26 October 2022)
Mr LOU Pou Hong (appointed on 26 October 2022)
Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael

Mr LIN Jian (appointed on 26 October 2022)
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EFSTE

ERFEB®R ZL Ms. Au-Yeung Lai Ling lvy

Chairman

2022 remained a challenging and uncertain year as COVID-19 persisted
around the World. The number of inbound travellers in Macau was the
lowest in recent years and the local economy was still full of uncertainties.
Macau adopted the “Relatively Static” control measures in June and July
which caused significant impacts to the economy, as well as challenges and
pressures on the Bank’s business and operations. During this difficult year,
the Bank continued to support the Government’s relief measures to reduce
the economic stress faced by our individual and SME customers.

Despite the challenges, for the year ended 31 December 2022 the Bank
recorded a net profit of MOP278 million, with total assets of MOP32.43
billion and return on average shareholders’ equity of 5.2%, which were at
similar levels as prior year. The Bank continued to maintain excellent asset
quality with non-performing loan ratio at 0.21% under the regulatory asset
classification. Capital adequacy ratio was at a healthy 18.7%.

Looking ahead to 2023, the Bank will continue to ride on the Group’s
strategic plan and take advantage of OCBC Group’s extensive network
especially in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area to
generate business growth. Moreover, we will expand our investment in
technology and human resources to improve customer and employee
experience. This will be achieved by leveraging on the Group’s advanced
technology and expertise in product development, process improvement and
cyber security aiming to provide efficient, user friendly and secured financial
services to our customers.
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Following the removal of travel restrictions and local control measures in
March 2023, we have seen gradual recovery in the number of visitors to
Macau. The completion of the six incumbent gaming operators’ concessions
renewal will also help accelerate recovery of the Macau economy. Finally, |
would like to thank our customers for their trust and unwavering support,
and our colleagues for upholding a high standard of customer service and
maintaining the Bank’s operations during the difficult times in 2022

Au-Yeung Lai Ling Ivy
Chairman

15 March 2023

Annual Report 2022 5



Y E=EATRT
—= OCBCWING HANG

Et$élu\ﬁl$

Report of the Supervisory Council
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According to the law and OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited’s (the “Bank”)
Articles of Association, the Supervisory Council (“We") should monitor the
Bank’s operation and management, and express an opinion on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the proposal of profit
distribution which are submitted by the Board of Directors.

We have carried out the necessary supervision, analyzed the operation and
management of the Bank for the financial year ended 31 December 2022,
and reviewed the 2022 Board of Directors’ report and the auditor’s report
issued by PricewaterhouseCoopers on 15 March 2023 for these financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Bank.

Based on the results of the reviews above, we are in the opinion that these

financial statements, proposal of profit distribution and reports submitted by
the Board of Directors should be approved in the Annual General Meeting.

President of Supervisory Council
TAM Ha Kei Abby

15 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of OWH, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of OCBC, a
company incorporated and listed in Singapore. The Bank has applied the
internal control objectives, principles and components as set out in “The
Internal Control Guidelines for the Authorised Credit Institutions” issued by
the Monetary Authority of Macau throughout the year ended 31 December
2022.

Board of Directors

Throughout the year, the Board maintained a stable composition that
provided strong and consistent leadership conducive to making and
implementing decisions effectively and appropriately. Each Director possesses
skills and experiences appropriate to the business of the Bank. The Board
also includes personnel with the appropriate accounting and other expertise
necessary for the smooth running of the Bank. During the year, all directors
of the Bank received regular briefings on economic updates, the Bank'’s
business, operations, risk management and corporate governance matters as
well as rules and regulations applicable to the Bank.

Members of the Board are as follows:

Ms AU-YEUNG Lai Ling Ivy (Non-Executive Chairman)
Mr LOU Pou Hong (Director & General Manager)
(appointed on 1 January 2023)
Mr CHEONG Kin Hong (Director & General Manager)
(retired on 31 December 2022)
Mr CHAN Han Wo Herbert (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael (Non-Executive Director)
Mr LAU Hon Chuen (Non-Executive Director)

Ms AU-YEUNG Lai Ling vy (Non-Executive Chairman) is the Chief Executive
of OWH.

All Directors have no relationship with each other.

During the year, seven board meetings were held. The 2022 Annual General
Meeting will be held on 30 March 2023.
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Supervisory Council

The Supervisory Council of the Bank has clear terms of reference. Its principal
functions are to independently review and monitor the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management system
of the Bank; oversee the audit process; and perform all other duties and
obligations stipulated in the relevant law and in the Articles of Association of
the Bank. The Supervisory Council reviews the audit coverage and approves
the internal audit plan, reviews the work, findings and recommendations
of the internal auditors. The Supervisory Council also discusses issues
raised by the external auditors and the regulators (if any), and ensures that
recommendations are properly implemented.

Members of the Supervisory Council are as follows:

Ms TAM Ha Kei Abby (President)
Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah (Supervisor)
Mr QUIN Va (Supervisor)

Ms TAM Ha Kei Abby is a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia
and the Head of Compliance of OWH.

Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah is the Company Secretary of OWH. Mr QUIN Va is a
Certified Public Accountant in Macau and a retired partner of Deloitte Touche
Tohmastus, Macau.

Four Supervisory Council meetings were held in 2022.

Corporate Strategy and Business Model

The Bank is a leading financial service provider in Macau. We aim to be
the preferred choice of our customers for financial services and to increase
shareholders’ value by maintaining a consistent growth in return on equity.

To be successful, we need to be focused and responsive as business
environments are challenging and ever changing. The Bank's strategic
objective is to continue to strengthen both business and operational aspects
of the Bank to ensure satisfactory returns to shareholders and to further
improve the competitiveness of the Bank.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board has established the following committees to oversee the day-to-
day operations of the Bank. All committees have specific terms of reference
in order to ensure that they discharge their functions properly and to report
back to the Board, where appropriate, their decisions and recommendations.
Information on these committees is set out below:

Management Committee

The Management Committee meets regularly to review and approve all
major matters relating to the strategy and planning, operations, management
and performance of the Bank. It is granted powers and authorities necessary
for conducting and managing the Bank’s normal banking and related
activities.

Members of the Management Committee are as follows:

—  Chief Executive, OWH Hong Kong

—  Director & General Manager;

—  Head of Corporate Banking Division & FLM Department;
—  Head of Retail Banking Division;

—  Head of Corporate & Commercial Banking Division;

—  Head of Retail Branch & Wealth Management Division;
—  Head of Strategy, Marketing & Lifestyle Financing Division;
—  Head of Operations & Technology Division;

—  Head of Financial Management Department;

—  Head of Credit Risk Management Department;

—  Head of Legal & Compliance Department; and

—  Head of Human Resources Department.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to formulate,
approve and implement loan policies, guidelines and credit practices of the
Bank. It is also responsible for the implementation and maintenance of the
Bank’s credit risk management framework. It also participates in evaluating
large credit applications and making credit decisions.

Members of the Credit Committee are as follows:

—  Director & General Manager;

—  Director & Deputy General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

—  Head of Credit Risk Management Department; and

— Head of Credit Assessment and Approval Team of Credit Risk
Management Department.

Annual Report 2022 9
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Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee is responsible for the
implementation and maintenance of the overall risk management framework
relating to balance sheet structure, market risk, trading, funding and liquidity
risk management of the Bank. It recommends policy and guidelines to the
Board for approval.

Members of the Asset and Liability Management Committee are as follows:

—  Director & General Manager;

—  Director & Deputy General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

—  Head of Funding and Liability Management Department; and
—  Head of Financial Management Department.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee provides a structured, cohesive and
forward-looking mechanism to identify, measure, monitor and control the
various type of risks across the entire spectrum of the Bank’s activities. While
each of these risks is managed by the division/department with specialized
knowledge and expertise in that area, the Risk Management Committee is
assigned to oversee the overall assessment and management of these risks.
The Risk Management Committee aims to ensure that each level of risks
is within the parameters set by the Board and that the risk management
process meets the standards required by the AMCM.

Members of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

—  Director & General Manager;

—  Director & Deputy General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

—  Head of Operations & Technology Division;

—  Head of Strategy, Marketing & Lifestyle Financing Division;
—  Head of Credit Risk Management Department;

—  Head of Information Technology Department;

—  Head of Legal & Compliance Department; and

—  Head of Financial Management Department.
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AML/CFT & Reputational Risk Committee

The Anti-Money Laundering (“AML")/Counter-Terrorist Financing (“CFT")
& Reputational Risk Committee is formed to oversee the functioning and
effectiveness of AML/CFT control measures so that all AML/CFT cases or
issues are properly monitored and addressed in a timely manner. It meets
regularly to discuss and approve actions and initiatives to mitigate risks
arising from AML/CFT matters and ensures proper control measures are in
place to meet the AML/CFT statutory and regulatory requirements.

Members of the AML/CFT & Reputational Risk Committee are as follows:

—  Director & General Manager;

—  Director & Deputy General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

—  Head of Operations & Technology Division;

—  Head of Legal and Compliance Department; and
—  Head of Financial Management Department.

Internal Controls
The Directors are responsible for internal controls of the Bank and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

Procedures are designed to safeguard assets of the Bank; maintain proper
accounting records; and ensure the reliability of financial information used
within the business or for publication. Procedures have also been designed to
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify, control and report on major
risks the Bank faces. Risk management policies and major risk control limits
are approved by the Board.

Business and functional units are responsible for the assessment of risks
arising under their areas of responsibility and the management of such risks
in accordance with the Bank'’s risk management policies and procedures.
The relevant risk management reports are submitted to the Management
Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee,
Risk Management Committee and the Board for monitoring the respective
risks.

Annual Report 2022 1
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More detailed discussions on the policies and procedures for management of
major risks the Bank faces, including credit, market, liquidity and operational
risks as well as capital management, are included in the notes to the financial
statements.

Internal audit plays an important role in the Bank's internal control
framework. It provides independent assurance on the effectiveness of the
Bank’s internal control and compliance with policies and standards across
all business and operational units. Senior management is required to
provide internal audit with evidence to verify that it has acted fully on all
the recommendations made by external auditors and regulatory authorities.
Internal audit also advises senior management on operational efficiency and
risk management issues. The work of the internal audit function focuses
on areas of higher risk to the Bank as determined by a risk-based audit
methodology. The Head of Internal Audit Department reports to the General
Manager and the President of the Supervisory Council. Audit reports are
submitted to the Supervisory Council for review.

15 March 2023
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OCBC WING HANG BANK LIMITED
(incorporated in Macao with limited liability by shares)

We have audited the financial statements of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
set out on pages 15 to 122, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region, and for such
internal control as directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Professional Committee
of Accountants of the Government of the Macao Special Administrative
Region. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the preparation of financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Annual Report 2022 13
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited as at 31 December
2022, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Government
of the Macao Special Administrative Region.

Ng Wai Ying
Certified Public Accountant

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Macao, 15 March 2023
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Statement of Profit or Loss

B2 2022F 12318 1F FJZ For the year ended 31 December 2022
(AR FPT T F b5 7) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
B 5%
Note 2022 2021
WA Interest income 5 749,046 644,410
EZH Interest expense 6 (206,324) (67,665)
BRI EWA Net interest income 542,722 576,745
BR7% & &R e WA Fees and commission income 107,058 136,022
fRig 8 e Fees and commission expense (8,639) (10,350)
REERBASWBAFEE Net fees and commission income 7 98,419 125,672
fig 245 A Dividend income 16,467 9,759
HAth e A Other income 8 16,963 39,085
Hih &2l A Other operating income 131,849 174,516
BEYWH Operating expenses 9 (347,697) (340,096)
HNKREBMEABL HEERKX Operating profit before expected
REFBRMEERT credit loss/impairment loss and
allowance 326,874 411,165
BERAMBAR 2 REEKX R Impairment loss and allowance
7E {5 [0 B charged on loans and advances 10 - (824)
TEHERBEBAREMEE Change in expected credit loss and
WEERZZE other credit impairment charges 17 (9,166) -
BR 3 A1 % R Profit before taxation 317,708 410,341
1A Taxation 11 (39,216) (49,199)
FRATIBMFARITREZER  Profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of the Bank 278,492 361,142

FREEFINRAZHMEBRATHRERDN —

#Bin e

The notes on pages 22 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

B2 2022F 12318 1F FJZ For the year ended 31 December 2022
(AR FPT T F b5 7) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
B 5%
Note 2022 2021
FRERN Profit for the year 278,492 361,142
FRAHEMZEWKE Other comprehensive income
(BRBERLESERE) for the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustments)
BAAMESEZEZRZEE Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
-EBHEBRITTUHEZORE),S — (Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of
&% bank premises 18 (33,874) 8,243
- EER IR — Deferred taxes 4,065 (990)
(29,809) 7,253
- UATFEEFEEHEEH - Equity securities measured at fair
FIAEMEEKE 2 value through other comprehensive
BHEES income
-RFEEE - Fair value changes 32(a) 63,923 -
- B IA — Deferred taxes (7,671) -
56,252 -
HETWEEESEERR L Items that may be reclassified
EHE subsequently to profit or loss
-AHEEERMEE — Available-for-sale financial assets
- ~TEEZS — Fair value changes
-EBBES - on debt securities - 15,797
-HTESH - on equity securities - (134,724)
-#@ABEX — Transfer to statement of profit or loss
-BE W — gains on disposal 8 - (24,239)
- EER IR — Deferred taxes - 17,180
- (125,986)
— UAFEEFEBEEE - Debt instruments measured at fair
FFAEMEEmEZE 2 value through other comprehensive
B ESH income
- RFEEZEF — Fair value changes (93,742) -
- BAEBEGE — Transfer to statement of profit or loss
—BREBECEX ~ Loss on disposal 8 (494) -
— JEHEAEX - Expected credit loss (3,458) -
— RER IR — Deferred taxes 11,308 -
(86,386) -
- BRRERTF — Unappropriated profits
— RITITHE - Bank premises
— RIEFIB — Deferred taxes 1,011 1,004
1,011 1,004
FAKRBA#2HMEZEER Other comprehensive loss for the
year, net of tax (58,932) (117,729)
FATSBFERITREZ Total comprehensive income for
TEHWEHE the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Bank 219,560 243,413

FNRAEEFIN2E 2 EBKAY B REN —

15 o
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The notes on pages 22 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

R2022F12A31H As at 31 December 2022
(AR FPT T F b5 7) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
Bt 3%
Note 2022 2021
BE ASSETS
W& RFMIBITRIZE « AREEFT Cash and balances with banks,
K H & B i 08 central banks and other financial
institutions 14 1,077,401 1,194,065
EEABLEE Trading assets 15 19,333 14,745
BPEER R EMRIE Advances to customers and other
accounts 16 20,442,268 22,539,712
JEUW SR AR YE AR A R]) - EBIER  Amounts due from ultimate holding
NE R R R E AR FRIE company, immediate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries 2,072,979 1,300,498
WAFEBEFEHBEZEHT A Financial assets measured at
Hth2EK a2z emEE fair value through other
comprehensive income 32 8,227,910 -
AEEESRmEE Available-for-sale financial assets - 8,674,156
EREEAE Tangible fixed assets 18 591,157 637,371
BEE Total assets 32,431,048 34,360,547
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Statement of Financial Position

R2022F12A31H As at 31 December 2022
(AR FPT T F b5 7) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
B 51
Note 2022 2021
&8fE LIABILITIES
RITREMEMSRIEETFI  Deposits and balances of banks and
&5 other financial institutions 19 120,561 250,000
BREEH - EH - BEREM  Current, fixed, savings and other
5 3 deposits of customers 20 22,512,976 23,904,985
BEETFRE Certificates of deposit issued 21 398,478 3,049,987
EERZgAE Trading liabilities 22 21,215 14,976
FET AR BABE 1R Current tax payable 23 61,149 50,025
EXERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 23 205,427 214,140
H fh BR I8 [ 2E Other accounts and provisions 24 301,534 252,415
JEM SRR AR C B Amounts due to ultimate holding
NGNS ACIES = NS E/ company, immediate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries 3,451,407 1,413,744
BEE Total liabilities 27,072,747 29,150,272
R EQUITY
& A Share capital 25(a) 120,000 120,000
& Reserves 25(b) 5,238,301 5,090,275
B Total equity 5,358,301 5,210,275
BELERARE Total liabilities and equity 32,431,048 34,360,547

HiEfTESeN —E-=—F=-A+AHAHUEKR Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Bank on

BREHEE - 15 March 2023.

BEBREE Au-Yeung Lai Ling vy Chairman

EREEZF Lou Pou Hong Director

ENEEEINE M EBRAGEHREN—  The notes on pages 22 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
i o
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Statement of Changes in Equity

B2 2022F 12318 1F FJZ For the year ended 31 December 2022
(AR FPT T F b5 7) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
2022
k& RE
&Gt ERRE  EMRE EERG
i Rx  -REl AERE EMEE  (ERE) GFEERM)  (WH2D) BREE RHEE
Investment
Bank Investment revaluation
premises revaluation  reserve Regulatory Unappropri-
Share  General legal revaluation reserve (non-  reserves ated Total
Note capital  reserve  reserve  reserve (recycling) recycling)  (Note25) profits equity
WNENANBES At 31 December 2021 120,000 184,200 120,000 420,791 1,149,559 - - 3215725 5,210,275
REBRREEER  Opening balance adjustments arising
FOmEEDEY from changes in accounting policies
ERAE and regulatory requirement - - - - (116757) 1123462 189879  (33,278) 163,306
0F15188FE%  At1January 2022 after opening
KNGS halance adjustments 120,000 184200 120,000 420,791 32,802 1123462 189,879 3,182,447 5,373,581
ERKE Dividends paid 12 - - - - - - - (234,840)  (234,840)
(Ea)/E\EE Transfer (from)/to reserve - - - (14 - - (34199 4,61 -
ERRF Profit for the year - - - - - - - 8492 218492
EREf2EEE Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - (29809 (86,386 56,252 - 1011 (58,932
WNENENALH At 31 December 2022 120,000 184,200 120,000 383,570 (53,584) 1179714 155680 3,268,721 5,358,301

Annual Report 2022
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Statement of Changes in Equity

B2 2022F 12318 1F FJZ For the year ended 31 December 2022
(AR FPT T F b5 7) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
2021
RATITHE kA
Mzt RA  —REE  ETEE  ERGE EREERE  R%ET  EagE
Bank
premises  Investment  Unappropri-
Share General legal  revaluation  revaluation ated Total
Note capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
0211818 58 At 1 January 2021 120,000 184,200 120,000 420916 1,275545 3,093,401 5,214,062
BkKRE Dividends paid 12 - - - - - (247200)  (247,200)
BNBHIB 2R  Surplus on revaluation of bank
T AR premises net of tax 18(a)() - - - 7,253 - - 7,253
BMBHBZAE  Fair value changes of available-for-sale
LESREE financial assets net of tax
NTEEZE - - - - (125,986) - (125986)
RITTIEMRZ Depreciation in relation to revaluation
RANE of bank premises - - - (7,378) - 8,382 1,004
ERRET Profit for the year - - - - - 361,142 361,142
202112831048 At 31 December 2021 120,000 184,200 120,000 420,791 1149559 3215725 5,210,275

FREEFINRAZHEBRATBHRERDN —

#Bin e
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The notes on pages 22 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement

B2 2022F 12318 1F FJZ For the year ended 31 December 2022
(AR FPT T F b5 7) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
B 5
Note 2022 2021
HEETHMERZRSFEE  Net cash outflow from operating
activities 28(a) (147,391) (282,719)
RETEE Investing activities
BABFETEE Purchases of tangible fixed assets 18 (10,454) (13,427)
BANAFEEFEAEE Purchase of financial assets measured
AFAEMEEKZE 2 25 at fair value through other
BE comprehensive income (3,816,696) -
BARBRIESMEE Purchases of available-for-sale financial
assets - (2,538,711)
HERBERUAFEENE Proceeds from sales and redemption
BEEFHFAEMZE K E of financial assets measured at fair
ZEMEEMSK value through other comprehensive
income 3,479,762 -
PENELRAHEEESMEE  Proceeds from sales and redemption
FT 18 3 of available-for-sale financial assets - 3,239,191
BB Dividends received 16,467 9,759
RREZHMUER) EE2  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
ReFH investing activities (330,921) 696,812
mEES Financing activity
B’ E Dividends paid 12 (234,840) (247,200)
AmEZTEmMERAZELEE Net cash outflow from financing
activity (234,840) (247,200)
BEMERBEEEBEBCHL),  Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
o FEE cash equivalents (713,152) 166,893
HeREFABELEBER1A1A Cash and cash equivalents at
F=3 - 1 January 2,526,589 2,359,696
Re&RERRELEBM12A318 Cash and cash equivalents at 31
ek December 28(b) 1,813,437 2,526,589
HEETamELEZ2REEE Cash inflows from operating
activities include:
2 U & Interest received 729,993 642,127
21 F & Interest paid 145,739 77,588

FREEFINRAZHEBRATBHRERN —

#Bin e
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

General information

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (“the Bank") was incorporated in Macau
on 2 September 1963 and has its registered office and principal place
of business at 241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro, Macau. The Bank is
engaged in commercial banking and related financial services.

The Board of Directors considers the immediate holding and ultimate
controlling party of the Bank to be OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong and Oversea-Chinese Banking
Corporation Limited, which is incorporated in Singapore respectively.
These financial statements were approved for the issue by the Bank's
Board of Directors on 15 March 2023.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Government of the
Macao Special Administrative Region under Directive No. 44/2020
of the Secretary for Economy and Finance (the “MFRS").

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires Directors to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Bank’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for bank premises which are carried at
market value; financial instruments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) as explained in the accounting
policies set out in Note 2(c).

The revised MFRS are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Bank. The adoption of
these new and revised MFRS do not result in significant changes to
the Bank’s accounting policies applied in these financial statements
for the year presented. Note 4 provides information on the changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Bank for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(b) Functional and presentation currency

(9]

These financial statements are presented in Macau Patacas, which

is the Bank’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded

to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
(1) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022

()

Initial recognition

The Bank classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for
which the assets were acquired or the liabilities were
incurred. The categories are: fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets and other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value,
which normally will be equal to the transaction price plus,
in case of a financial asset or financial liability not held
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs
on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed immediately.

The Bank recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchase or sale
of financial assets and financial liabilities is recognised
using settlement date accounting basis. Any gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recorded.

23
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(1) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(1) Classification

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, and those designated
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition, but exclude those investments in equity
instruments that do not have a quoted market price
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or
financial liabilities which are acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of trading, or are part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there
is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking. Derivatives that do not qualify
for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading
instruments.

The Bank has the option to designate financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition when:

—  the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated
and reported internally on a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch which would
otherwise arise;

— the asset or liability contains an embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required under
the contract; or

—  the separation of the embedded derivatives
from the financial instrument is not prohibited.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(1) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(i)~ Classification (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities under this
category are carried at fair value. Changes in the
fair value are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal
or repurchase, the difference between the net sale
proceeds or net payment and the carrying value is
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market, other than (1)
those that the Bank intends to sell immediately or
in the near term, which will be classified as held
for trading; (2) those that the Bank, upon initial
recognition, designates as at fair value through
profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or (3) those
where the Bank may not recover substantially all of
its initial investment, other than because of credit
deterioration, which will be classified as available-
for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise
loans and advances to customers and banks, and
placements with banks, central banks and other
financial institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less impairment
losses, if any.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(1) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(i)~ Classification (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as available-
for-sale or are not classified in any of the other
two categories above. They include financial assets
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time,
but which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or changes in the market environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at
fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value are not recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and are accumulated
separately in equity, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
items such as debt securities which are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Investments in equity securities that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably, and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity securities are
carried at cost less impairment losses, if any. Interest
income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method and dividend income from
equity securities are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(1) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(i)~ Classification (Continued)

- Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold,
gains or losses on disposal include the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
value, and the accumulated fair value adjustments
which are released from the revaluation reserve.

—  Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss,
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

(iif)  Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices at the reporting date without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial
assets are priced at current bid prices, while financial
liabilities are priced at current ask prices.

If there is no publicly available latest trade price nor a
qguoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or
a price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded
financial instruments, or if the market for it is not active,
the fair value of the instrument is estimated using
valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate
of prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on Directors’
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market
rate at the reporting date applicable for an instrument
with similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing
models are used, inputs are based on market data at the
reporting date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(1) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022 (Continued)

(iv) Derecognition
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(i) above.

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or where the financial asset together with
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, have

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or

The Bank uses the first-in, first-out method to determine
realised gains or losses to be recognised in profit and loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position where there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both the derivative
and a host contract with the effect that some of the cash
flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to
a stand-alone derivative. The embedded derivatives are
separated from the host contract and accounted for as a
derivative when (1) the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the
host contract; and (2) the hybrid (combined) instrument
is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host
contract is accounted for in accordance with Note 2(c)(1)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022

()

Classification and measurement of financial assets
The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or through fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")); and

—  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income (“OCl"). For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Bank has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or
loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(1) Classification and measurement of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Business model assessment
The Bank makes an assessment of the objective
of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed, and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the
portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. In particular, whether management'’s
strategy focuses on earning contractual interest
revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of the liabilities that are
funding those assets or realising cash flows
through the sale of the assets;

-  how the performance of the portfolio
is evaluated and reported to the Bank’s
management;

—  the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and its strategy of
how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are
compensated (e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed
or the contractual cash flows collected); and
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(1) Classification and measurement of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Business model assessment (Continued)

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales in
prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
its expectations about future sales activity.
However, information about sales activity is not
considered in isolation, but as part of an overall
assessment of how the Bank's stated objective
for managing the financial assets is achieved
and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading and whose
performance is evaluated or managed on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are
neither within the business model to hold to collect
contractual cash flows, nor within the business
model to hold both to collect contractual cash flows
and to sell financial assets.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(1) Classification and measurement of financial assets (Continued)
(b) Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual
cash flows and sell, the Bank assesses whether the
financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest (the “SPPI test”).
In making this assessment, the Bank considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest
includes only consideration for the time value of
money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a
profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce
exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent
with a basic lending arrangement, the related
financial asset is classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

() Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Financial instrument is subsequently measured at
amortised cost if it is held for collection of contractual
cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest. Income from these
financial assets is included in interest income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other income together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(i) Debt instruments measured at FVOC/

A debt financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated at
FVTPL:

— it s held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial asset; and

— its contractual terms give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding.

Debt instruments classified at FVOCI are subject to the
expected credit loss requirements in accordance with IFRS
9. Interest earned whilst holding the financial assets is
included in interest income.

At the reporting date, the Bank recognises unrealised
fair value gains and losses on revaluing these assets in
OClI and presents the cumulative gains and losses in
investment revaluation reserve within equity, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. At maturity
or upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(iv) Debt instruments measured at FVTPL

v)

Debt instruments that do not meet the requirements to
be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI are measured
at FVTPL. At the reporting date, the Bank recognises
realised and unrealised gains and losses as trading income
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest earned while
holding the assets is included in the interest income.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments held for trading are classified
at FVTPL. Equity instruments that are not held for
trading are either classified at FVTPL or FVOCI based
on an irrevocable election on initial recognition on an
investment-by-investment basis.

At the reporting date, realised and unrealised fair value
gains or losses on revaluing the equity instruments
classified at FVTPL are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Realised and unrealised fair value gains or
losses on revaluing the equity instruments classified at
FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Dividend earned whilst holding the equity instruments
classified at FVTPL is reported as dividend income in
the statement of profit or loss. Dividend from equity
instruments classified at FVOCI is recognised as dividend
income in the statement of profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(vi) Reclassification

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their
initial recognition, except in the period when the Bank
changes its business model for managing its financial
assets.

(vii) Derecognition — modification of financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Bank
evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are
substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash
flows from the original financial asset are deemed to
have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is
derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at
fair value.

(viii) Derecognition — other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised
when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the assets have expired, or either (i) the Bank
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, or (ii) the Bank neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
the Bank has not retained control.

The Bank enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows
to other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as
‘pass through’ transfers that result in derecognition if the
Bank:

— has no obligation to make payments unless it
collects equivalent amounts from the assets;

— s prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

- has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from
the assets without material delay.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(ix) Offsetting

(x)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position where there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both the derivative
and a host contract with the effect that some of the cash
flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to
a stand-alone derivative. Derivatives may be embedded
in another contractual arrangement (a host contract). The
Bank accounts for an embedded derivative separately
from the host contract when:

—  the host contract is not an asset in the scope of IFRS
9

—  the host contract is not itself carried at FVTPL;

—  the terms of the embedded derivative would meet
the definition of a derivative if they were contained
in a separate contract; and

— the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivative are not closely related to
the economic characteristics and risks of the host
contract.

Separated embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value, with all changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss unless they form part of a qualifying cash flow or net
investment hedging relationship.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(x) Embedded derivatives (Continued)

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as
a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged. The Bank designates certain derivatives as
hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities,
or commitments (fair value hedge). Hedge accounting
is used for derivatives designated in this way provided
certain criteria are met.

The Bank documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
The Bank also documents the assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether
the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values of
hedged items.

(xi) Fair value hedging

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and that qualify as fair value hedging
instruments are recorded in the statement of profit or
loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that is attributable to the hedged
risk. If the hedge relationship is terminated, the fair value
adjustment to the hedged item continues to be reported
as part of the carrying value of the asset or liability and
is amortised to the statement of profit or loss as a yield
adjustment over the remaining maturity of the asset or
liability.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(d) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

0

(ii)

Bank premises that are held for the Bank’s administrative
use are stated in the statement of financial position at
their revalued amount, being their fair values at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity by
professional qualified valuers to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the reporting date. Changes
arising on the revaluation are generally dealt with in equity
and are accumulated in the Bank premises revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged
to the statement of profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect of that
same asset immediately prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited
to the statement of profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same asset had
previously been charged to the statement of profit or
loss.

Bank premises that are not held for the Bank’s administrative
use and other tangible fixed assets are stated in the statement
of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any (Note 2(g)).

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of tangible
fixed assets that has already been recognised is added to
the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that
future economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed
standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to the
enterprise. All other subsequent expenditure is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
tangible fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Freehold land

Freehold buildings

Leasehold land and buildings

Office furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Not depreciated
50 years

25 to 50 years
3 to 10 years

5 years
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(d) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

(iii) Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
tangible fixed assets and bank premises are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve
to retained profits and is not reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss.

(e) Operating lease

()

Where the Bank has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to the statement
of profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Bank may take
possession of the collateral assets through court proceedings or
voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. In accordance
with the Bank’s accounting policy set out in Note 2(g), impairment
allowances for impaired loans and advances are maintained after
taking into account the net realisable value of the repossessed
assets. Repossessed assets continue to be treated as securities for
loans and advance. The Bank does not hold any repossessed assets
for its own use. Repossessed assets are recorded at the lower
of their carrying amount of the related loans and advances and
fair value less costs to sell at the date of exchange. They are not
depreciated or amortised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(g) Impairment of assets

Q)]

Policy applicable before 1 January 2022

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial
assets are impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Bank about one or more of the following loss
events which has an impact on the future cash flows on the
assets that can be estimated reliably:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

- abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the borrower;

— disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to
the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the
statement of profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of loans and receivables, which are measured at
amortised cost, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Bank is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against loans and receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
borrower are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets

(1) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022 (Continued)

()

Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets). Receivables with a short
duration are not discounted if the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

Allowances for credit losses are made in reference to
the provisioning guidelines pursuant to AMCM Notice
No0.18/93 (“AMCM'’s Provisioning Guidelines”). The Bank
assesses losses for impaired loans and advances when
there is objective evidence that impairment of a loan or
portfolio of loans has occurred. The Bank assesses on a
case-by-case basis at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that a loan is impaired and
makes individual assessment to arrive at specific provision
to such loan. For loans where specific provisions are not
individually provided, general provisions are calculated on
a collective basis to cover losses which have been incurred
but not yet been identified, and such estimation is made
in reference to the AMCM'’s Provisioning Guidelines.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of
the expected future cash flows compared to the prior
estimates that can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the write-down, will result in a change in
the impairment allowances on loans and receivables and
be charged or credited to the statement of profit or loss.
A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the loans
and receivables’ carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the
loan and the related interest receivables are written off.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets
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(1) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022 (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans
that have been restructured due to deterioration in the
borrower’s financial position and where the Bank has
made concessions that it would not otherwise consider.
Renegotiated loans and receivables are subject to
ongoing monitoring to determine whether they remain
impaired or overdue.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When there is objective evidence that an available-
for-sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss
that had been recognised in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that
are carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the
equity securities and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss.
Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(g) Impairment of assets
(1) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(i) Other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each reporting date to identify indications that
tangible fixed assets (other than properties carried at
revalued amount) may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro-rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal or value in use (if
determinable).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(g) Impairment of assets
(1) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(iii)  Other assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to the income statement in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022
Under IFRS 9, the Bank recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit loss (ECL) with a forward-looking ECL model.

(i)  Scope
Under IFRS 9, the expected loss model is applied to
financial assets classified at amortised cost or FVOCI, and
certain off-balance sheet loan commitments and financial
guarantees which were previously provided for under
IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)

(ir)

(iir)

Expected credit loss impairment model

Under IFRS 9, credit loss allowances are measured on
each reporting date according to a three-stage expected
credit loss impairment model:

—  Stage 1 — On initial recognition, expected credit loss
will be that resulting from default events that are
possible over the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

—  Stage 2 — Following a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial assets since its initial recognition,
the credit loss allowance will be that which results
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the asset (Lifetime ECL).

— Stage 3 — When a financial asset exhibits objective
evidence of impairment and is considered to be
credit-impaired, a loss allowance will be the full
lifetime expected credit loss.

Measurement
ECL are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses.
The measurement of ECL reflects:

— an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

—  the time value of money; and
— reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort at the

reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(g) Impairment of assets
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(i) Measurement (Continued)
For financial instruments in-scoped for ECL:

financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the
reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive);

financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows;

undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to the Bank if the commitment is drawn
down and the cash flows that the Bank expects to
receive; and

financial guarantee contracts: the expected
payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts
that the Bank expects to recover.

The key inputs used in the measurement of ECL are:

Probability of default (PD) — This is an estimate of the
likelihood of default over a given time horizon;

Exposure at default (EAD) — This is an estimate of
the exposure at a future default date, taking into
account expected changes in the exposure after the
reporting date, including repayments of principal
and interest as well as expected drawdowns on
committed facilities;

Loss given default (LGD) — This is an estimate of the
loss arising on default. It is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those
that the Bank would expect to receive, including
from any collateral.
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2 FEEHHRBE 2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9) EEREE) (g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(2) 2022F1AMBABRNBE(E) (2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)

(i) it Z (4&) (iii) Measurement (Continued)
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ECL for exposures in Stage 1 are calculated by multiplying
the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD. ECL for exposures in
Stage 2 and 3 are calculated by multiplying lifetime PD by
LGD and EAD.

Loans and bills receivables that are collectively
assessed are grouped on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics such as account loan type, industry,
geographical location of the borrower, collateral type and
other relevant factors.

All key inputs (PD, LGD and EAD) used to estimate
Stage 1 and Stage 2 expected credit loss are modelled
based on three macroeconomic scenarios (or changes in
macroeconomic variables) that are most closely correlated
with expected credit loss in the relevant portfolio.

The three macroeconomic scenarios represent a most
likely “Base” outcome, and two other less likely
“Upside” and “Downside” scenarios. These scenarios are
probability-weighted and underlying key macroeconomic
assumptions are based on independent external and
inhouse views. The assumptions are subject to regular
management reviews to reflect current economic
situations.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(i) Measurement (Continued)
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Each macroeconomic scenario used in the expected
credit loss calculation includes a projection of all relevant
macroeconomic variables used in the models for the
lifetime period, reverting to long-run averages generally
after 3 to 5 years periods. Depending on their usage in
the models, macroeconomic variables are projected at a
country or more granular level which differ by portfolio.
The primary macroeconomic variables adopted are Gross
Domestic Product, Unemployment rate, Property Price
Index and Interest rate.

The definition of default used in the measurement of
expected credit losses is consistent with the definition of
default used for credit risk management purposes. The
default definition has been applied consistently to model
the PD, LGD and EAD throughout Bank’s expected credit
loss calculations.

The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default by
assessing both quantitative and qualitative criteria such
as days past due and the terms of financial covenants.
A default occurs when the borrower or bond issuer is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full,
without recourse by the Bank to actions such as realising
security (if any is held) or when the financial asset is more
than 90 days past due.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(i) Measurement (Continued)

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Bank about one or more of the following loss events
which has an impact on the future cash flows on the
assets that can be estimated reliably:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the borrower;

— disappearance of an active market for financial
assets because of financial difficulties; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is
reduced to the estimated recoverable amount by means
of a charge to the income statement.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL
are the maximum contractual period over which the Bank
is exposed to credit risk.

Financial assets are written off against their related
impairment allowances when all feasible recovery actions
have been exhausted or when the recovery prospects are
considered remote.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(i) Measurement (Continued)

(iv)

Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement activity and
(i) where the Bank's recovery method is foreclosing on
collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Bank has not used the low credit risk exemption for
any financial instruments in the year ended 31 December
2022.

Movement between stages

Movements between Stage 1 and Stage 2 are based
on whether an instrument’s credit risk as at the
reporting date has increased significantly since its initial
recognition.

In accordance with IFRS 9, financial assets are classified in
Stage 2 where there is a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, where the expected credit loss
will be measured using lifetime ECL.

The Bank considers both qualitative and quantitative
parameters in the assessment of whether this is a
significant increase in credit risk. These include the
following:

(@) The Bank has established thresholds for significant
increases in credit risk based on a relative change in
lifetime PD relative to initial recognition.

(b) The Bank conducts qualitative assessment to
ascertain if there has been significant increase in
credit risk.

(©

The Bank uses 30 days past due as an indication of
significant increase in credit risk.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
(iv)  Movement between stages (Continued)

Movements between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are based on
whether financial assets are credit-impaired as at the
reporting date. The determination of whether a financial
asset is credit-impaired under IFRS 9 will be based on
objective evidence of impairment.

The assessments for a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and credit impairment are
performed independently as at each reporting period.
Assets can move in both directions through the stages
of the impairment model. After a financial asset has
migrated to Stage 2, if it is no longer considered that
credit risk has significantly increased relative to initial
recognition in a subsequent reporting period, it will move
back to Stage 1. A modification of the terms of a financial
asset that does not result in derecognition will result in
the financial asset being transferred out of Stage 3 if the
indicators of it being identified as credit-impaired is no
longer met and that the evidence for its transfer out of
Stage 3 solely relates to events such as up-to-date and
timely payment occurring in the subsequent periods.

If a modified financial asset results in derecognition, the
new financial asset will be recognised under Stage 1,
unless it is assessed to be credit-impaired at time of the
modification.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with banks,
central banks and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid inter-bank placements and investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Balances of banks, central banks
and other financial institutions that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Bank’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purposes of the cash flow statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

()

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Bank.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plan
are recognised as expenses in the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
prior years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available, against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(1)

(k)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, the Bank
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities. The principle of offsetting usually applies to
income tax levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (“the holder”) for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to customers, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within other liabilities. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be
made.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the statement of profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with Note 2(l)(ii) if and when (1) it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Bank under
the guarantee, and (2) the amount of that claim on the Bank
is expected to exceed the amount currently carried in other
liabilities in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

53
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
(k) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation,
complaint or legal claim, arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

() Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that economic benefits will
flow to the Bank and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss as follows:

(i) Interest income
(1) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022
Interest income for all interest-bearing financial
instruments is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
the interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, call and similar options) but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to residential
mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to the
statement of profit or loss over their expected life.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(I) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Interest income (Continued)

(1)

)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2022 (Continued)

For impaired financial assets, the accrual of interest
income based on the original terms of the financial assets
is discontinued, but any increase in the present value of
impaired financial assets due to the passage of time is
reported as interest income.

Policy applicable after 1 January 2022

Effective interest rate

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial
instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired assets, the Bank estimates future cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, but not ECL. For purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective
interest rate is calculated using estimated future cash
flows including ECL.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes
transaction costs and fees and points paid or received
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
Transaction cost include incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a
financial asset.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(I) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Interest income (Continued)

(2) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)
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Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset is the amount
at which the financial asset is measured on initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount and, for financial
assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance (or
impairment allowance before 1 January 2022).

The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for
any expected credit loss allowance.

Calculation of interest income

The effective interest rate of a financial asset is calculated
on initial recognition of a financial asset. In calculating
interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to
the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is
not credit-impaired). The effective interest rate is revised
as a result of periodic re-estimation of cash flows of
floating rate instruments to reflect movements in market
rates of interest. The effective interest rate is also revised
for fair value hedge adjustments at the date amortisation
of the hedge adjustment begins.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest
income reverts to the gross basis.

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income does
not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the
asset improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-
impaired, see note (g).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(I) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(ii) Fee and commission income
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Policy applicable before 1 January 2022

Fee and commission income is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the corresponding service is provided,
except where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a
continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is
interest in nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as
income in the accounting period in which the costs or risk is
incurred or accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Bank
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not expected to
result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees
are recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment
period.

Policy applicable after 1 January 2022

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral
to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or financial
liability are included in the effective interest rate.

Other fee and commission income — including account
servicing fees, investment management fees, sales
commission, placement fees and syndication fees — is
recognized as the related services are performed. If a loan
commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a
loan, then the related loan commitment fee is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the commitment period.

A contract with a customer that results in a recognised
financial instrument in the Bank’s financial information may
be partially in the scope of IFRS 9 and partially in the scope of
IFRS 15. If this is the case, then the Bank first applies IFRS 9
to separate and measure the part of the contract that is in the
scope of IFRS 9 and then applies IFRS 15 to the residual.

Other fee and commission expenses relating mainly to
transaction and service fees which are expensed as the
services are received.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

U]

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment is quoted ex-dividend.

(m) Translation of foreign currencies

(n)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Macau Patacas at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Macau Patacas at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Macau
Patacas using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included in net
realised and unrealised gains/losses on trading financial instruments
or financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or
loss. All other exchange differences relating to monetary items
are presented as gains/losses arising from dealing in foreign
currencies in the statement of profit or loss. Differences arising on
translation of equity securities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in reserves.

Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related

to the Bank if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Bank;

(i) has significant influence over the Bank; or

(iii)

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Bank or the Bank'’s parent.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(n) Related parties (Continued)

@)

An entity is related to the Bank if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Bank are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Bank or an entity
related to the Bank;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1);

(vii) a person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provide key management personnel services to the Bank
or to the Bank’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Notes 18 and 32 contain information about the assumptions and their

risk factors relating to valuation of bank premises held for administrative

use and fair value of financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the Bank's
provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Bank recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Fair value estimation

Fair value is derived from quoted market prices or valuation
techniques which maximise the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The fair values of
financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) are determined by using
valuation techniques. Where unobservable data inputs have
a significant impact on the value obtained from the valuation
model, such a financial instrument is initially recognised at the
transaction price, which is the best indicator of fair value. The
difference between the transaction price and the model value,
commonly referred to as “day one profit and loss” is not recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

The timing of recognition of the deferred day one profit and
loss is determined individually. It is amortised over the life of
the transaction, released when the instrument’s fair value can
be determined using market observable inputs, or when the
transaction is derecognised.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

() Impairment losses
(i) Policy applicable before 1 January 2022

(1)

@)

Impairment losses and allowances on loans and advances
to customers

The Bank periodically reviews its loan portfolios to assess
the existing specific and general provisioning level. In
determining whether an impairment loss and allowance
on loans and advances to customers should be recorded,
the Bank makes reference to the requirements of AMCM
and the classification of loans and advances which are
based on the management'’s assessment of the potential
losses on those identified loans and advances. Where
the recoverability of a loan is considered doubtful by
the management but full information of the borrower’s
financial situation is not available, the management
will exercise their judgment to estimate the amount of
provision required against the loan. Should the final
recoverable amount differs from the amount estimated
to be recoverable, the difference together with the
consequential tax impact will be reflected in the financial
statements of the year when this occurs.

Impairment on available-for-sale equity securities

The Bank determines that available-for-sale equity
securities are impaired when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below cost. The
determination of when a decline in fair value below cost
is not recoverable within a reasonable time period is
judgmental by nature, profit and loss could therefore be
affected by differences in this judgement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

3 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Impairment losses (Continued)

(ii) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022

Expected credit losses
The Bank has the following types of financial instruments that
are subject to the expected credit loss model:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost,

financial assets measured at FVOCI, and

- loan commitment and financial guarantee contract.

In determining whether the credit risk of the Bank'’s financial
exposures has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Bank considers quantitative and qualitative information
such as the Bank's historical credit assessment experience and
available forward-looking information. Expected credit losses
(ECL) estimates are based on probability-weighted forward-
looking economic scenarios. The parameters used in ECL
measurement (probability of default, loss given default and
exposure at default) incorporates forward-looking information.
The determination of the forward-looking economic scenarios
and incorporation of forward-looking information into ECL
measurement requires management to exercise judgement
based on its assessment of current macroeconomic conditions.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

() Impairment losses (Continued)
(ii) Policy applicable after 1 January 2022 (Continued)

m

@)

Expected credit loss for non-credit-impaired financial
instruments

As of 31 December, 2022, the forward-looking scenarios
used in the ECL model have been updated from those as
of 31 December, 2021 which reflects the latest available
macroeconomic view.

— Stages 1 and 2 ECL are modelled based on a central
baseline forecast with its upper and lower bound to
represent forecasting ranges. However, the central
forecast with its upper/lower range may not factor
in significant emerging risks and macroeconomic
events that are expected but uncertain in terms of
impact and timing. Such events have the potential to
trigger a recession but are not adequately captured
in existing forecasts. Therefore, the Bank added an
additional scenario in the computation of ECL.

Expected credit loss for credit-impaired financial
instruments

In respect of credit-impaired exposures, management
judgement and estimation are applied in, amongst
others, identifying impaired exposures, estimating the
related recoverable cash flows and where applicable,
determining collateral values and timing of realisation.
Judgements and assumptions in respect of these matters
have been updated to reflect the relevant information as
of 31 December 2022.

The Bank’s expected credit loss is disclosed in Note 17.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(d) Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
The Bank makes estimate and assumptions over the useful lives of
tangible fixed assets. At each statement of financial position date,
both internal and external sources of information are considered to
assess whether the estimated useful lives of tangible fixed assets
are appropriate and relevant. If there has been a significant change
in the expected pattern of economic benefits for these tangible
fixed assets, the depreciation methods should be changed to reflect
the changed pattern and such change should be accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate and the depreciation charge for the
current and future periods should be adjusted.

4 Changes in accounting policies

Effective from 28 March 2020, Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Government of Macau under Administrative Regulation No.
25/2005 on 9 December 2005 (the “Old MFRS"”) were replaced by
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Directive No. 44/2020 of the
Secretary for Economy and Finance on 17 March 2020 (the “MFRS").
The MFRS is mandatory for adoption from the annual period beginning
1 January 2022. The adoption of these new and revised MFRSs do not
result in significant changes to the Bank’s accounting policies applied in
the financial statement for the period presented except for the following
information set out. The following set out information on the significant
changes in accounting policies for the current and opening balances
reflect in this financial statement.

(@) IAS 1 in the MFRS

IAS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ in the MFRS requires
to present all non-owner changes in equity either in one statement
of comprehensive income or in two statements. The standard
also requires the presentation of a statement of financial position
(balance sheet) as at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period in a complete set of financial statements when the
entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a
retrospective restatement. These impact presentation aspects.
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(b) IFRS 9, Financial instruments
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With effect from 1 January 2022, IFRS 9 in the MFRS prescribes
new accounting requirements for classification and measurement
of financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model of
measuring impairment of financial assets, and new general hedge
accounting requirements.

The date of transition to IFRS 9, Financial Instruments was 1
January 2022, as the Bank elected to apply the transitional
provisions under IFRS 9 to not restate the financial information
of its comparative period in respect of financial instruments. The
Bank was also exempted from the application of IFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures for the comparative period to the extent
the disclosures relate to items in scope of IFRS 9.

The Bank was required to recognise the cumulative effect of first-
time adopting IFRS 9 in Unappropriated Profit as at 1 January
2022.

The accounting policies for financial instruments under IFRS 9 from
1 January 2022 is as disclosed in note 2 (c).

The following sets out information on the significant changes in
accounting policies for the current and opening balances reflected
in this financial report.
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4 S BENEBE@ 4 Changes in accounting policies (continved)
(b) (BEIBMKEHMELERNNER  eMITA (b) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)
(%)

(1) ERBWNER
TEREBRES BV K HELER
B 38R 1 G B2 B AL 220214812
R31ALEFEMNMBMRRERPH
SEBBEMEARE -

(1) Restatement of opening balances
The following table discloses the adjustments that have been
made in accordance with the transitional provisions of the
respective MFRS to each line item in the statement of financial
position reported for the year ended 31 December 2021.

HOBERE
R2021% ER e R20226
12A318  HUERHEE 1818
Opening
At balance At
31 December adjustments 1 January
2021 on MFRS 2022
BE ASSETS
BeREREATRE Cash and balances with banks, central banks
mRETREM and other financial institutions
SREEAE 1,194,065 (99) 1,193,966
EERREE Trading assets 14,745 — 14,745
REEFLEMERE Advances to customers and other accounts 22,539,712 187,314 22,727,026
EREBZERARR Amounts due from immediate holding company
RZMBARHE and fellow subsidiaries 1,300,498 - 1,300,498
NWATFEEFERE Financial assets measured at fair value through
BYHAEMEZAE other comprehensive income
Rz eRmEE - 8,674,156 8,674,156
AHLESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 8,674,156 (8,674,156) -
BRETEE Tangible fixed assets 637,371 - 637,371
BEE Total assets 34,360,547 187,215 34,547,762
a8 LIABILITIES
BITREREMER Deposits and balances of banks and other
KEERRES financial institutions 250,000 - 250,000
REEH -®H- Current, fixed, savings and other deposits of
FERAMEFR customers 23,904,985 - 23,904,985
BETFERE Certificates of deposit issued 3,049,987 - 3,049,987
BEERBERE Trading liabilities 14,976 - 14,976
FERAER IR Current tax payable 50,025 22,269 72,294
BEERIEER Deferred tax liabilities 214,140 - 214,140
HbBRIE R EE Other accounts and provisions 252,415 1,640 254,055
EREBEBRARKRFAZ  Amounts due to immediate holding company
Lol NSIE$2 and fellow subsidiaries 1,413,744 - 1,413,744
Baf Total liabilities 29,150,272 23,909 29,174,181
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(1) Restatement of opening balances (Continued)

HokRE

20215 RS 20224
12318 HU&EHEE 1818
At Opening balance At
31 December adjustments 1 January
2021 on MFRS 2022

B EQUITY
R A Share capital 120,000 - 120,000
& Reserves - - -
- —REE - General reserve 184,200 - 184,200
- ZERE - Legal reserve 120,000 - 120,000
- RITTHERFEE - Bank premises revaluation reserve 420,791 - 420,791
- REEHFEE@ERME) - Investment revaluation reserve (recycling) 1,149,559 (1,116,757) 32,802
- BREERFHEGEBRE) - Investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) - 1,123,462 1,123,462
- EEHE - Requlatory reserve - 189,879 189,879
- BHEF - Unappropriated profits 3,215,725 (33,278) 3,182,447
Tk Total reserves 5,090,275 163,306 5,253,581
BHEE Total equity 5,210,275 163,306 5,373,581
BERERZGS Total liabilities and equity 34,360,547 187,215 34,547,762

(2 PEHEAE SREENSRE

&

MiatERE  FITEEMEER
BERA  ARFEEFERR
BHIARLMEEBRFEKARF
BEAEAEZEHFABR

E°

financial liabilities

loss (FVTPL).

(2) Classification and measurement: financial assets and

On initial recognition, a non-derivative financial asset is
either measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and

Annual Report 2022 67



Y E=EATRT
—= OCBCWING HANG

Bt 75 AR MY &

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LRI T Tz 57 - 55 it B 56D

4 BHBEXENEE®

(b) (EFRMBHEEAEIR : EMTH

(%)

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(2 PEHEGAE SREENSHE (2)

& (&)

TERBTIRERAENETER

o)

Riast 8485 - LAKRN20224F18
THRB(EBR B REER)E
IR THAITERMEENTNT =
BRI o MR BMEERNE
5% T ¥ A& 17 20221 H1H 2
SHEENDBEREFZERLIEE

(b) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement: financial assets and
financial liabilities (Continued)
The following table shows the original measurement
categories in accordance with the previous accounting policies
and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for the
Bank's financial assets as at 1 January 2022. There were no
changes to the classification and measurement categories
under IFRS 9 for the Bank’s of financial liabilities as at 1
January 2022.

b o
RiE
R RE  (ERMBEES
RERENEH (EREHREER) REHE 3 VE LT
BENERDE ELEAE R BERNREE FREE
Original carrying
amount under
Original classification previous New carrying
under previous New classification accounting amount
accounting policies under IFRS 9 policies under IFRS 9
$ B EE Financial assets
REREMRITAS  PRETR BERRERE BHMA
At emEETE Loans and receivables Amortised cost
Cash and balances with banks, central banks
and other financial institutions 1,194,065 1,193,966
EBMRAE NATEEFEAL NATEEGEBAEED
Trading assets g8 AER SABER
FVTPL FVTPL 14,745 14,745
EPERREMKE BERRERFE BRI
Advances to customers and other accounts Loans and receivables Amortised cost 22,539,712 22,727,026
EREBERADRAZMBAARE  ERREKFE BEAK
Amounts due from immediate holding Loans and receivables Amortised cost
company and fellow subsidiaries 1,300,498 1,300,498
TEHMERREE A& ARTEEGEAAEHITA
Available-for-sale financial assets Available-for-sale EmrEls
Fvoc 8,674,156 -
ARFEEFEAEEDHALLL AEHE PYNREIEEEEES EHIN
2ENELEREE Available-for-sale A2 EkA
Financial assets measured at fair value Fvod
through other comprehensive income - 8,674,156
& R & & 1 Total finandial assets 33,723,176 33,910,391
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4 BHBEXENEE®

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b) (EIBMBEREEDNEIR - €@ TH (b) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)
(&)
2 PEHEHNE SREENERE (2) Classification and measurement: financial assets and

&(#E)

CEFR B 75 3 &5 22 B D SE 957 WY 8
REH ERMIITINENE - I
RN XEITR AL -

(R BB 15 3R & R B9
R ARTTEEBESA R KIEER
ERGEREFESNEERE
BERSARTFEEFEARES
FAHMEmER REEFZ
R D BARHEE - REBECER
FBWELRDESR  RFES
REEREQNTFEENEDTH

EnBEER -

BRit 25 - R ERAB T EREK
T THEBITAZARBER
BRM - BARB(RBR B RS
ERDFESE  REEBIACE
DREMNEN  BHEFEAEE
RETE (VRO BERITHEEN
BB TABRDARARFEER
ERHEHIAEMEEKE:
LR BRFAZINHOES
TERDERZEBHEKANE -

financial liabilities (Continued)
The application of IFRS 9 has resulted in the reclassifications
set out in the table above and is explained below.

The Bank has elected to irrevocably designate strategic
investments in a portfolio of non-trading equity securities at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI")
as permitted under IFRS 9. These securities were previously
classified as available-for-sale. The changes in fair value of
such securities under IFRS 9 will no longer be reclassified to
profit or loss when they are disposed of.

In addition to the above, the following debt instruments have
been reclassified to new categories under IFRS 9, as their
previous categories under the previous accounting policies
were ‘retired’, with no changes to their measurement basis:
(i) Those previously classified as available-for-sale and now
classified as measured at FVOCI; and (ii) Those previously
classified as held-to-maturity and now classified as measured
at amortised cost.
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4 BHBEXENEE® 4
(b) (EIBMBEREEDNEIR - €@ TH
(&)
(3) TRMN2022F1A1HBEZ(EK
BEREERNEIRE  KEE
FEsTEBE THREEE(E R
R IREERNFEIR THWEIREE

Changes in accounting policies (continuead)
(b) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(3) The following table reconciles the carrying amounts
under previous accounting policies to the carrying
amounts under IFRS 9 on transition to IFRS 9 on 1
January 2022.

EITHRE -
REER
REREH BERE
BHEE ERI)E9%
R2021E W2022%
128318 181H
WREE ENTE BN WREE
Previous
accounting
policies’ IFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount amount
31 December 1 January
2021  Reclassification Remeasurement 2022
SRHEE Financial assets
BEAK Amortised cost
BeREHBIRE - Cashand balances with banks, central banks and
RRETRERER other financial institutions
BENE 1,194,065 - (99) 1,193,966
REEFREMER Advances to customers and other accounts 22,539,712 - 187314 22,727,026
FEWEEZRAGRE  Amounts due from immediate holding company
AZNEARNE and fellow subsidiaries 1,300,498 - - 1,300,498
BHmrEn Total amortised cost 25,034,275 - 187,215 25,221,490
IWAFEEFERESE Fair value through other comprehensive
AR 2ENE income
MENERREE Available-for-sale financial assets 8,674,156 (8,674,156) - -
WATEEFEEE  Financial assets measured at fair value through
BHHALNLZE other comprehensive income
Wi -EBES - debt securities - 7,358,249 - 7,358,249
NATEEEER Financial assets measured at fair value through
BHHAAMZE other comprehensive income
Wa-EnEs - equity securities - 1,315,907 - 1,315,907
WATEENERE  Total VOCI
EHAALMLEA
g 8,674,156 - - 8,674,156
DATEETEAE Fair value through profit or loss
EHHARE
BERARLE Trading assets 14,745 - - 14,745
NAFEESFEEL  Total FVTPL
FE RN LT 14,745 - - 14,745
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

MBHELERDBIRE - KRR
092 5T R T 9 AR T B B2 (R R
MBHEEREIR THREE

EATHAE - ()

(b) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(3) The following table reconciles the carrying amounts

under previous accounting policies to the carrying
amounts under IFRS 9 on transition to IFRS 9 on 1
January 2022. (Continued)

REER
REREH MBRE
S HE EH)Eo%
R2021% R2022%
12A31H 1818
WREE BN E EffctE WREE
Previous
accounting
policies’ IFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount amount
31 December 1 January
2021 Reclassification Remeasurement 2022
tREE Financial liabilities
BHERA Amortised cost
BOREREMSEME Deposits and balances of banks and
FaRkEsR other financial institutions 250,000 - - 250,000
REEH TH BER Curent, fixed, savings and other deposits of
EtER customers 23,904,985 - - 23,904,985
BEIERE Certificates of deposit issued 3,049,987 - - 3,049,987
EREBZERLAL  Amounts due to immediate holding company
AZWBARRE and fellow subsidiaries 1,413,744 - - 1,413,744
HfpiRE Other accounts 210,831 - 1,640 212,471
BHmARg Total amortised cost 28,829,547 - 1,640 28,831,187
DATEBEHERE  Fair value through profit or loss
BEIAER
BERALER Trading liabilities 14976 - - 14976
HilRE Other accounts 41,584 - - 41,584
WATEEHEEE  Total FVTPL
ZYTABHLE 56,560 - - 56,560
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(%)

(3

THRNA2022F1A1EBEE(EK
MERELER)FEIRE  KRE
METHRETHWEREHEER
MR EEA)EIR THWREE
EITHRE - ()

T 3% 1 & 48 RKCER 1D 1E20214F12
A318 B B 4% 45 68 8220221 A1
Hiz BCE B % HEERDF9
SRRV AE R 1T IR ED o

BRESMHEHEERMY)

RIERAN SRR RES
(2021512 B318)

HARTFEEFEEEEHTA
Hip 2B 7S BLHEE
waEnREECGEERE

1R 1R (B R B 75 3R 45 2E 81 ) 5595k
BRUAFEEFEAEE
AR EEmKG 2 ESES

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(b) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(3) The following table reconciles the carrying amounts
under previous accounting policies to the carrying
amounts under IFRS 9 on transition to IFRS 9 on 1
January 2022. (Continued)

The following table reconciles the closing balances of equity
components as at 31 December 2021 to the opening balances
in accordance with IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2022.

R2022%F

1A18% A

B B B 7% 3R 5 2E A
FIORHTE

Impact of adopting
IFRS 9 at

1 January 2022

Investment revaluation reserve (recycling)
Closing balance under previous accounting

policies (31 December 2021) 1,149,559
Transferred to investment revaluation reserve

(non-recycling) relating to equity securities

measured at FVOCI (1,123,462)
Recognition of expected credit losses under

IFRS 9 for debt securities financial assets

measured at FVOCI

TREEMEBFERIESX 7,619
e IE Related tax (914)
RIECH BRI & 2 RI)E95E A Opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 January 2022)

B W 4 2 (202251A818) 32,802
REEGMRBECGEREN) Investment revaluation reserve

(non-recycling)
BEREHDTHRERMNHKRLEL  Cosing balance under previous accounting

(2021412 A318) policies (31 December 2021) -
HEERUATFEBEFEHBEEES Transferred from investment revaluation

AAEMEERE ZEZESFM  reserve (recycling) relating to equity securities

KEEHHEREERLE) measured at FVOCI 1,123,462
RIECRBE %R EERNEIRAM  Opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 January 2022)

HAW) 4 2 (202251818) 1,123,462
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TRN2022F1A1RBEZ (B
MBREEAFIRE - BRE
092 5T R T 9 AR T B B2 (R R
MBHEEREIR THREE
EATHAE - ()

EERE
RIEREN ST RN RES
(2021412 A318H)

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(b) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(3)

The following table reconciles the carrying amounts

under previous accounting policies to the carrying
amounts under IFRS 9 on transition to IFRS 9 on 1

January 2022. (Continued)

Regulatory reserves
Closing balance under previous accounting
policies (31 December 2021)

R20225F

1B1B&A

B B B 75 4R 5 22 A)
FIORHTE

Impact of adopting
IFRS 9 at

1 January 2022

EARRRTT Transferred from unappropriated profits 189,879
RIECH BRI R & 2 RI)E95E A Opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 January 2022)

H )& #% (2022F1A1H) 189,879
BRRER Unappropriated profits
BIERENSTHENILAERR  Closing balance under previous accounting

(2021412 A31H) policies (31 December, 2021) 3,215,725
1R 5 (B B B 75 = 5 E RN ) B 99K Recognition of expected credit losses under

BROEREHABREEUR IFRS 9 (including debt securities financial

TEEFEEHEHAAEM assets measured at FVOCI, loan

rENEC EREFEREE commitments and financial guarantee

ERAE RV BEREL) contracts) 178,870
BUEERE Set up of regulatory reserves (189,879)
EL R R Related tax (22,269)
BIEC(EBE M MEED)FEIHRA  Opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 January 2022)

EA¥ 4 4 (2022F1A1H) 3,182,447
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(%)

(3) Tx

R2022F1818BE Z(BEK

MBHELERDBIRE - KRR
092 5T R T 9 AR T B B2 (R R
MBHEEREIR THREE

AT
kS

HE - (E)
AT IR B FE A -

HZ2021F12A31H R B R
B HRENEREERN
BB EER - U RIBRE(E
Bt ER)EI7RIERE -
FABERIAREE |NEK
EEMVBEREOEE:
il

ES

RIECHBR S HREAER)E
95k R2022F 1 A1H E EHH
B HE RIBREE o

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(b) IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(3) The following table reconciles the carrying amounts
under previous accounting policies to the carrying
amounts under IFRS 9 on transition to IFRS 9 on 1
January 2022. (Continued)

The following table reconciles:

— the closing impairment allowance for financial assets
in accordance with previous accounting policies and
provisions for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as at 31
December 2021; to

—  the opening ECL allowance determined in accordance
with [FRS 9 as at 1 January 2022.

20214
128318 (FEMN 20225
BHBE /BB 1818 (BB BT %
B ERE375%) EHE HEEL)FR)
31 December
2021 (Previous
accounting 1 January 2022
policies/IAS 37) Remeasurement (IFRS 9)
REBEMEHE 2 Loans and receivables under previous
ERRERGE/ accounting policies/financial assets
BEERABRE measured at amortised cost under
HRNFINRIZE IFRS 9
RAFEZCREE 229,439 (187,215) 42,224
BERENEHKEZ  Avalable-for-sale debt securities
AHHERBES/ under previous accounting policies/
BEERABRE financial assets measured at
ERNEIRART FVOCI under IFRS 9
BEGELEED
HAEMEEKEZ
CREE - 7,619 7,619
EXAEGEMDELN Loan commitments and financial
BBREREYD guarantee contracts issued - 1,640 1,640
Bt Total 229,439 (177,956) 51,483
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(0 (BABRMBH/EEIEIHR - BEFE ()
Bz A

(BB REERDBISRELT—
HEmER  UHEREXFZANEG
Rl EE LA o

(Bl H|E R F1STH ARG
WAZER (BB & EHER)F185E » K
EHERMMBERREEENKRA
NECEB & ERDENRIZES
Rl REHZEERELNEAE
TR EFHEIE - MEANBNRAAEA
REMIBRBOHEHREBERFE
MR - WNCER P RELEDEIS
FHATHBEENLBEEATE - R
BATERENBIEN LR RERLRE

B o
o

(1) fERFEHE
A(TIBE — TS AR BT
BAEHE - EHTHRARBS
HB RS - (AR SORTT
B ATERRARNAEEE
WA W BRI -

HEAREHEFEEHENER
BE 2P RAEMER - BE
BRENHEEZARAE ZREDH
MEBFZEWLT:

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers.

IFRS 15 replaces the existing revenue standards, IAS 18, Revenue,
which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering
of services, and IAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies
the accounting for revenue from construction contracts. The new
standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when
control of a good or service transfers to a customer. There is no
material impact on the Bank’s financial statement after adoption
of IFRS 15. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated.

(1) Credit card loyalty scheme
The Bank operates a loyalty scheme for credit card issuing
where credit holders accumulate points for spending which
entitle them to redeem the points in the future. A contract
liability is recognised until the points are redeemed or expire.

Contract liabilities in relation to the credit card loyalty scheme
were previously presented as other provisions and reclassified
to contract liabilities. The main effects resulting from this
reclassification are as follows:

REREWH R (BB

B HE BBREER)

R2021F12A31H F155 R2022%

HREE ENOE 181N EREE
Previous
accounting

policies carrying IFRS 15

amount
31 December 2021

carrying amount

Reclassification 1 January 2022

HthRBRERE Other accounts and provisions
- BEEELENER - Provisions for liabilities and
accrued charges 67,123 (5,630) 61,493
- &R&aRE - Contract liabilities - 5,630 5,630
mE Total 67,123 - 67,123
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5 FEUWA 5 Interest income
2022 2021
REBRMEEZAEZFBRA Interest income calculated using the
effective interest method:
-EURFEEFEAEED - financial assets not measured at
FFABRZEMEE fair value through profit or loss 746,174 636,823
H A F S WA Other interest income:
-EERABREE - trading assets 2,872 7,587
749,046 644,410
NERBRESREE KA EBE The above interest income from impaired financial assets includes
BHE2022F12A31BIEFE 2 ERRERE interest income on unwinding of discount on loan impairment losses
KIrNEEE 2 F) S U A 58,0002 F7T (2021 of MOP58,000 (2021: MOP138,000) for the year ended 31 December
F : 138,000 P L) ° 2022.
6 FMEXH 6 Interest expense
2022 2021
FMEXHRE : Interest expense arising from:
-URAFEEFEAEZEGHTA — financial liabilities not measured at
Bmzemai fair value through profit or loss 203,540 67,665
-BEEAZAEE - trading liabilities 2,784 -
206,324 67,665

76 2022F FH



Y =EmATRT
— OCBCWING HANG

Bt 75 AR MY &

Notes to the Financial Statements

(AR F Tz 7 - Bt b o) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
7 RBERAESWBAFE 7 Net fee and commission income
2022 2021
(e Eah)
(Restated)
Ri%E LAz A Fees and commission
BRETGTRER Deposit related business 8,828 10,307
BHEERER Loan related business 4,609 9,469
EHRESEB Trade finance business 2,098 2,270
BEBRERRED Credit card related fee 21,242 25,537
BEEERGE Stock-broking fees 26,177 41,342
MEERERGE Wealth management fees 6,555 8,630
HMmREMS Other agency commissions 25,279 35,409
BB EERAe Other fees and commission income 12,270 3,058
R ERAS I Less: Fees and commission expenses (8,639) (10,350)
98,419 125,672
Hr: Of which:
EFIEEERBLIERTIA Net fees and commission, other than
NEBEFABRZ ZEH amounts included in determining the
TAMEELEZ FRBE R effective interest rate, arising from financial
FHE  BIEFTEER instruments that are not held for trading
&z HKIBEBRIN nor designated at fair value through profit
or loss
-RBEERB2BKA - fees and commission income 36,777 47,583
-RBEERAESH - fees and commission expense (8,639) (10,350)
28,138 37,233
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8 Other income

2022 2021
(e Eah)
(Restated)
HNIE B B I = Gains arising from dealing in foreign
currencies 14,577 18,245
HHES Hedging activities
— RFEEZEHF — Fair value hedges
— ¥ mI1E B (M 5E27(0) - hedged items (Note 27 (b)) (88,474) (62,134)
— SR T A (M FE27(b) - hedging instruments (Note 27 (b)) 89,405 63,905
— ¥ A RRAK LKA - Breaking cost for hedging
(BT 5£27(0)) (Note 27 (b)) 173 (6,323)
BEEREEeM T EZERFESE  Netloss from financial instruments held for
(Bt E29(b)(i)) trading (Note 29 (b)(i) (847) (937)
REREEREEMHHFEH Net unrealised (losses)/gains transferred
REBRUBX), M= from investment revaluation reserve upon
disposal (494) 24,239
BEEAAFEEFTEBEEE Net gains on disposal of financial assets
FAEMEEKEREE measured at fair value through other
REemMEE 2 W FE comprehensive income and trading
financial assets 285 -
BEEAUHEERESEHABREE  Net losses on disposal of available-for-sale
BEZEXRFH and trading financial assets - (392)
BEEEFEEEE ZIBKFE Netloss on disposal of tangible fixed assets (22) (283)
H A Others 2,360 2,765
16,963 39,085
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9 EEXH 9 Operating expenses
2022 2021
(& at)
(Restated)
ek EMEBRA Salaries and other staff costs 201,271 194,704
RARAE T A A (B aE31) Retirement benefit costs (Note 31) 15,100 11,582
216,371 206,286
TEBFEZITUEREZESLE  Premises and equipment expense,
excluding depreciation 29,897 27,063
7 & (Ff 5118) Depreciation (Note 18) 22,772 22,689
KEHEER Operating lease charges 3,675 3,804
% £ B & A Auditors’ remuneration 968 799
EH A, Others 74,014 79,455
347,697 340,096

10 EFENRMBRZEEEAXR 10 Impairment loss and allowance released on

% {5 B 3 loans and advances to customers
2022 2021
FRlERS Specific provision
— &N — Additions - 2,571
— [B] # — Releases - (3,043)
- (472)
—RERS General provision
— 320 - Additions - 1,296
— [B] #% — Releases - -
- 1,296
BamixNERZREEBLR Net impairment loss and allowance released
ZE 1 [0 to statement of profit or loss - 824
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11 B1E

AOBMEIETHAAREBERELTS BA
B o AEAB BRI S H AT AN - IR
BRMMSHARBE  BAURBKES
#32,00058 P9 712K #300,00058 P T B -
FRIEE3%E0% MR ET B - Higik
& T 12% M) B R UL © 2022F R 202145 &
BETHABHKESR 2aRFBREETA
600,000)8F97 + Hi& 2 Wi 12% 8 [E E
BREHE -

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

11 Taxation

Tax expenses of the Bank comprise of current and deferred tax. Current
tax comprises of Macau complementary tax. According to the Macau
complementary tax law, tax is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 3% to 9% on the taxable income above MOP32,000 but below
MOP300,000, and thereafter at a fixed rate at 12%. For the year 2022
and 2021, the special tax incentive is provided to effect that the tax free
income threshold is MOP600,000 and the profit thereafter being taxed
at a fixed rate of 12%.

2022 2021
NEAT 18 Current taxation
— RFEERE - Charge for the year 38,200 49,189
— FE TR - China income withholding tax 1,016 328
-~ AFEFEEHEBT — Over provision in respect of prior years - (318)
AFEEBRELH Current year tax expenses 39,216 49,199

AR AT 2 B B A R 2 B B R R R PR A
THORPIF W AR 2 BRE £ H
- T

The taxation on the Bank's profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Macau complementary
tax rate applicable to profits of the Bank as follows:

2022 2021
Fr %1 AT & A Profit before taxation 317,708 410,341
R12%T EH R Tax calculated at 12% (2021: 12%)

(20214F : 12%) 38,125 49,241
REBENTE Effect of progressive tax rates 17) (17)
R B IR FE e Special complementary tax incentive (55) (55)
TR BIE 2 & A Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,104 1,091
JERB 2 W= Income not subject to tax (969) (778)
TEFEEERBT Over provision in prior years - (318)
R TR AR China income withholding tax 1,016 328
H A Others 12 (293)
REEMB I Current year tax expenses 39,216 49,199

12 B2 12 Dividends
M2022F10A268 * IR K #H/#EIRE 2 On 26 October 2022, the Annual General Meeting (“AGM") approved
2021 [E i% B 4&234,840,000)8F9 7T © & & an appropriation of dividend of MOP234,840,000 attributable to 2021.
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BESREEAME 13 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
2022 2021
ExHe Fees 236 150
Hib B < Other emoluments 6,777 6,567
7,013 6,717
RITHAREEEENE B QT WHGRE - Certain directors of the Bank received remuneration from group
iz 5 MM A8 B AT o companies but no allocation has been made to the Bank.
= =] .
14 RERTFHIBITRIZE - AR 14 Cash and balances with banks, central banks
/= = =] . . . . .
TR Hit £ wh#H8 KE and other financial institutions
2022 2021
REHER Cash balances 522,555 323,983
17 AR SR 4R 17 2038 (B 5F) Balances with central banks (Note) 473,482 735,726
FRRITRIZE FKIA Balances with banks 81,380 134,356
T8 HA (= 18 Sk (1P B (B 5E17) Expected credit loss (Stage 1) (Note 17) (16) -
1,077,401 1,194,065
MisE: REBEZEEER  RITALFRRHEERZ Note: According to the statutory requirement, the Bank is required to maintain a
HEFREAMERDE SRR - ZIFRER minimum deposit balance with AMCM for liquidity purpose. The required
BEBHSBEIBENEZTAAEYXE F— weekly average of the MOP current deposit balance should not be less than
BRZEEUNRBYEZFHELRBEME 70% of the sum of the following percentage of the average of the basic
B2 EMZ70% : liabilities classified by term and calculated in the preceding week:
(@) HHZEEAEEZI%: (@) 3% on all the liabilities which are repayable on demand;
by =ZFEANTEBE=FARJEEARZ (b) 2% on all the liabilities which are repayable within 3 months (3 months
2%+ BEtAQ@MBERIN: & inclusive) except for those already counted in (a); and
(© Z=EALALFAERAEEZ1% - () 1% on all the liabilities which are repayable beyond 3 months.
2022612 A31H - RITRBRFI&ERZ As at 31 December 2022, the amount of minimum statutory deposit
&% 1K 17 3% 58 /390,730,000 9 7T (20214 balance with AMCM required for the Bank is MOP390,730,000 (31
128318 : 464,210,00038F9 L) ° December 2021: MOP464,210,000).
1SEERAZREE 15 Trading assets
EEAREETZRTESRIAZER Trading assets represent positive fair values of derivative financial
SEEE - HA18,047,00052 F9 7t (2021412 instruments, of which MOP18,047,000 (31 December 2021:
A31H : 14,655,000 9 jT) & B & & 15 i MOP14,655,000) were balances with the immediate holding company.

NCIPa
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16 EFERKHMERE 16 Advances to customers and other accounts
() EFEREKHEHMERE (a) Advances to customers and other accounts
2022 2021
EFEERETE Gross advances to customers 20,239,183 22,579,306
B TR EREBR(EIRE2 Expected credit loss (Stages 1 and 2)/
PEER) " ERFBH— K general provision for loans and
HR® (fFE17) advances (Note 17) (47,626) (227,737)
TEERE R 1B AR (BB3PEER) B 3 Expected credit loss (Stages 3)/specific
MBFAERER 2 (FFE17) provision for loans and advances
(Note 17) (4,989) (1,702)
XFEEFFE Net advances to customers 20,186,568 22,349,867
AAEFPAR Customer liability under acceptances 47,990 47,722
BIEE R ZTEEM T AZ Positive fair values of derivative financial
ERFEE instruments held for hedging 57,188 -
H#hAR1E Other accounts 150,523 142,123
HiiR1E 2 BE{ERAE X Expected credit loss (Stage 1) for
(R B (BT 5E17) other accounts (Note 17) 1) -
20,442,268 22,539,712
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16 EFERKEMERE#)

(b) BITEXSBENEFER
EPERZITRENREZEERZ
REsBRRABRKIMNEREMAE
K/ORBBEEER - ARNTE2IERER
FERRBEEHERBRR(F3EER)
SEFHERAE -

16 Advances to customers and other accounts

(Continued)

(b) Advances to customers analysed by industry sectors
The information concerning advances to customers by industry
sectors is prepared by classifying the advances according to the
usage of the advances and is stated gross of any expected credit
loss/impairment allowances. Impaired advances to customers and
the related expected credit loss (stage 3) or specific provision are
also presented.

2022 2021
B
EF HE BREX XP WA
EXRAE EFEX (#3K8) ERB% RPER HiERS
Gross Impaired Expected Gross Impaired

advances advances  credit loss advances advances Specific

to customers to customers (Stages 3)  to customers  to customers provision

RERARE Agriculture and fisheries - - - - - -

REX Mining industries - - - - - -

HEg Manufacturing industries 132,828 - - 152,174 - -

B REMBEIK  Electricty, gas and water - - - - - -

BERDETR Construction and public works 2,830,675 - - 3,271,616 - -

BH(HERTE) Wholesale and retail trade 376,840 - - 332,238 47 37

ZE CEERABETE  Restaurants, hotels and similar 627,367 - - 670,093 - -
&% 2HRAA Transport, warehouse and

communications 82,361 - - 10,684 - -

BIBEE (ERT) Non-monetary financial institutions 340,421 - - 880,619 - -

8% Gaming 62,986 - - 725,204 - -

EEREE Exhibition and conference - - - - - -

HE Education 5,093 - - 3,022 - -

BB Information technology 6,119 - - 9,677 - -

LR AT Other industries 748,630 - - 524,310 528 414

EABE Personal loans 15,025,863 92,427 4989 15,999,669 21,171 1,251

20,239,183 92,427 4,989 22,579,306 21,746 1,702

R2022F12A31AZFEHEAIEBLR R
TP E OB E 2 & BB FE29)Q2)i)
Mrzed R NMEEBREHEE -

The expected credit loss and impairment made for advances to
customers as at 31 December 2022 is defined and accounted for in
accordance with Note 2(g)(2)(iii).

R2021F 128318 BRI ERZE
kO BRMBRE@EBHRHELR=E
A) - ERFKAEEMNBEREN &
HREB1% -

As at 31 December 2021, according to the requirements of AMCM, a
general provision of 1% is made of the aggregated balance of loans and
advances (with overdue days of less than 3 months), guarantees and
contingent assets.
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16 EFERKEMERE#)

84

(9]

(d)

WEZEFER
MEZEFERGER HEERRTE
RIAEAE B L (FE3RBR),FRIRE
EEOFWT

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

16 Advances to customers and other accounts

(Continued)

(c)

Impaired advances to customers

The gross impaired advances to customers, market value of
collaterals held with respect to such advances and expected
credit loss stage 3/specific provision impairment allowances are as
follows:

2022 2021
BEZEFPEREE Gross impaired advances to customers 92,427 21,746
BEREFEREEEFENR  Gross impaired advances to customers
BME2EDE as a percentage of total advances to
customers 0.46% 0.10%
BERPERZERRME Market value of collateral held with
respect to impaired advances to
customers 87,687 18,417
TEHE B R (B3R Expected credit loss (Stage 3)/specific
HFRER e provision 4,989 1,702

MEZEFPEREXER G - AE
EECHRERN 2 EERERE - 5
FARBRERMBRE R ATKRE SRR 2
FRERERENFHZERERRE
K (EWR) /BRERS - iR
mIEEEWE-

202212 A31H X 20214F12 A318 -
RTETRITAZE ZHIEHR - WER
BZRITRAEER  MEREERE
HEREBA (FE3E) BRlERE -

W EEE
7202212 A318 X 2021412 A318 -
RITREFEFEABREEE -

2022F F 3

(d)

Impaired advances to customers are individually assessed loans with
objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis. Individually
assessed expected credit loss (Stage 3)/specific provisions were
made after taking into account the net present value of future
recoverable amounts in respect of such loans and advances, and
the collaterals held mainly comprised properties.

There are no impaired advances to banks nor expected credit loss
(Stage 3)/specific provisions made on advances to banks as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

Repossessed assets
At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Bank did not
hold any repossessed assets.
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17 FHERERX
() BHEABANYHE

17 Expected credit loss

(a) Reconciliation of expected credit loss

F1RE2
BB/ -# H3kE/
EA[EE 2B BREN  BRERS @it
Stage 1and
2/General Stage 3/
provision Specific
Stage 1 Stage 2 Sub-total provision Total
EAZON £12A318 At 31 December 2021 - - 221731 1,702 229,439
SHBREZHMELR  Opening balance adjustments arising
ﬂﬂ NEEAHE (Ta) from change in accounting policy
(Note 4) - - (180,853) 2,897 (177.956)
R022F1A1E - B Asat 1 January 2022, after opening
AR balance adjustments 25,865 21,019 46,884 4,599 51,483
EZSBTIE Transfers of financial instruments
- REBBRERFE - transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (2,684) 2,684 - - -
- REBREZZIR ~ transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1 14,871 (14,871) - - -
- B2 E3ER - transfers to Stage 3 (19) (364) (383) 383 -
RIS - transfers from Stage 3 483 - 483 (483) -
ENME/EMEXE/  Changes in PDs/LGDS/EADs/forward-
BORRKO,/ A looking assumptions
CEva (12,459) 18,321 5,862 3,825 9,687
FERNNEREE New financial assets originated,
EERE-FHER repayments and further lending 2,210 110 2,320 (2,855) (535)
BHEREATNER Unwind of discount of expected credit
(M 5E5) losses (Note 5) - - - (58) (58)
KEfFEHBZER Recoveries of advances written off
in prior years - - - 2,345 2,345
A b Amounts written off - - - (2,767) (2,767)
EXAEREME Exchange adjustments and other
movements 2 16 14 - 14
#00245128318 At 31 December 2022 28,265 26915 55,180 4,989 60,169
BETISBEMBEER  Representing expected credit loss for:
BX:
FHRRETAZNTE Balances and placement with banks
(FizE14) (Note 14) 16 - 16 - 16
RPERRAMER Advances to customers and other
GEE) accounts (Note 16(a)) 26,044 21,583 47627 4,989 52,616
ARBERABNER Contingent liabilities and commitments
& (fz26) to extend credit (Note 26) 1,107 2270 3377 - 3377
NATFEEFEAZEE  Financal assets measured at fair value
SAEMEZERE through other comprehensive
TREE income 1,098 3,062 4,160 - 4,160
#0251 8318 As at 31 December 2022 28,265 26,915 55,130 4,989 60,169
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17 A EREXR®
(b) tRHEENEHEARL
TEIRTEMEENEMBE 2

17 Expected credit loss
(b) Expected credit loss on financial assets
The following tables set out information on the credit quality of

EEx- financial assets and other liabilities.
2022
FIRE FRER FIRER @t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BeNEWEITRERE - Cash and balances with and

DA R R ATH B B R loans and advances to banks
IFRHE Pass 1,077,417 - - 1,077,417
B EHEREX Less: Expected credit loss (16) - - (16)

1,077,401 - - 1,077,401
ERERMB T Loans and advances to customers
FEH Pass 17,058,398 2,995,476 - 20,053,874
BisE Special mention - 92,882 - 92,882
WA R Substandard - - 63,564 63,564
AR Doubtful - - 13,265 13,265
BRE Loss - - 15,598 15,598
B BHEREX Less: Expected credit loss (26,043) (21,583) (4,989) (52,615)
17,032,355 3,066,775 87,438 20,186,568

DWATEENERESE Financial assets measured at

FAEMEEKEN fair value through other

SREE comprehensive income
iR Pass 7,937,781 290,129 - 8,227,910
BHERERX Expected credit loss (1,098) (3,062) - (4,160)
HABEREENEREE  Contingent liabilities and

commitments to extend credit

IFEH Pass 2,410,700 197,114 - 2,607,814
ahadd Special mention - 500 - 500
KRR Substandard - - 500 500
BHEREX Expected credit loss (1,107) (2,270) - (3,377)
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18 Tangible fixed assets

&AW - £
RATATHE BERER &t
Furniture,
fixtures,
Bank equipment and
premises motor vehicles Total
BASMAE: At cost or valuation:
2022F 1 B1R &% As at 1 January 2022 654,876 195,866 850,742
wNE Additions 12 10,442 10,454
BRE Disposals - (2,798) (2,798)
EHA% Surplus on revaluation (33,874) - (33,874)
BHEHBITTHZ BFTE Elimination of accumulated depreciation
on revalued bank premises (9,664) - (9,664)
202212 A31H & & As at 31 December 2022 611,350 203,510 814,860
RIHE: Accumulated depreciation:
2022F 1 RA1B &% As at 1 January 2022 48,512 164,859 213,371
HARE Charge for the year 11,686 11,086 22,772
RE Mk Written back on disposals - (2,776) (2,776)
BHEHBITTHZ BFTE Elimination of accumulated depreciation
on revalued bank premises (9,664) - (9,664)
202212 A31H & & As at 31 December 2022 50,534 173,169 223,703
2022F 12 A3THEEFE Net book value as at 31 December 2022 560,816 30,341 591,157
BASAE: At cost or valuation:
20211 AVB &5 As at 1 January 2021 656,256 201,052 857,308
NE Additions - 13,427 13,427
BE Disposals - (18,613) (18,613)
EHAR% Surplus on revaluation 8,243 - 8,243
HHEMBBITTULCBEHTE Elimination of accumulated depreciation
on revalued bank premises (9,623) - (9,623)
2021F 12 A31B & %% As at 31 December 2021 654,876 195,866 850,742
RIFE: Accumulated depreciation:
2021 F 1 AE & As at 1 January 2021 46,490 172,145 218,635
HA N 12 B Charge for the year 11,645 11,044 22,689
& E Mk Written back on disposals - (18,330) (18,330)
HHEEMBBITTULCBEHTE Elimination of accumulated depreciation
on revalued bank premises (9,623) - (9,623)
2021F12 A31A & 8 As at 31 December 2021 48,512 164,859 213,371
2021F12A31BREF(E Net book value as at 31 December 2021 606,364 31,007 637,371
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18 EFEEEE®)

20224

128318 K% 202112 A318H * FiB

FETRAZNRTITL  C&ABILA

EBMTE
BARE

—ARFEEHEEREXEERS
i HMOET REENEME

ENERGE  ALMEEGMENAE
HEMBRIEERTHEBELR

() ¥
(i)

(ii)

AFEETE
HE202F12831B IEEE - &
TR TS HEITHRAE MR
174k 2 E 1 B 18 /A33,874,000/8
FI7T - OBR IE I 7 184,065,00058
FITQO21F12ANB B & &
48,243,000/ FI7T » HIBRIELERL
18990,000;8 P9 7t) » B 7F % 3 4
WHER WERTITH EERE
HEHRE o

BEARTHETBRABR ZBT1T
AR AR = REr T E AR
H IR W E R2022F12A31HE &
38,234,000% F9 7t (2021412 A31
B :39,475,000}8 F5 7 ) °

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

18 Tangible fixed assets (continued)
All of the bank premises held for administrative use were revalued by

an independent firm of surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, who
have among their staff, fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors,

with recent experience in the location and category of properties being

valued.

(a) Fair value measurement of properties

(i) The deficit on revaluation on bank premises held for
administrative use of MOP33,874,000 net of deferred tax
of MOP4,065,000 for the year ended of 31 December
2022 (2021: surplus on revaluation on bank premises held
for administrative use of MOP8,243,000 net of deferred
tax of MOP990,000) have been recognised in equity and
accumulated in the bank premises revaluation reserve.

(ii)

The carrying amount of the bank premises held for

administrative use would have been MOP38,234,000 as at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: MOP39,475,000) had
they been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

(b) BTTUHZEREFEMNT: (b) The net book value of bank premises is as follows:
2022 2021
ORI Z KA ERE Tt Freehold land in Macau 235,497 255,274
ERFAZEAN T Leasehold land in Macau 325,319 351,090
560,816 606,364
VETEXREMESRKIESFT 19 Deposits and balances of banks and other
R & &g financial institutions

88

2022 2021
RITRENRHEMSFEEITI Deposits and balances of banks and other
No#s financial institutions 120,561 250,000
2022F FF 3R
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(A&

20 FF R - €8 - ERHM 20 Current, fixed,

21

22

23

PIMETF T Z T » 5 B 5))

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

savings and other deposits of

F®& customers
2022 2021
EHEAER P Current accounts 1,844,486 2,066,593
BETR Savings deposits 10,901,410 13,060,560
T R H A 1F R Fixed and other deposits 9,767,080 8,777,832
22,512,976 23,904,985
ERTERE 21 Certificates of deposit issued

HR2022F12A31H © & & /4398,478,000
BT 2 7 R EQ021F12A318 -
3,049,987,00038 F97T) E M EBRITEE D
T84T ©

EEAZEE
EERBRBEFEATESMIAZAR
F{B{E - E#19,907,000% P9 7t (2021412
HA31H : 14,976,000 F9 7T) A& B2 & 42 42 I}
REIREBERARZ & -

FHEAREREEHESRE
AR RTR - NEEN R IE AR
15 %8 75 B 2 # #561,149,00038 P9 7T (20214
12 A318 : 50,025,0003& F37T) o

RERTABAZAEFMURAHRBEER
EAHRBEAE MR RS HRIAER K
BHRBSHEANES  EEHBAEERAER
RS - HIHBBEMT

22

23

As at 31 December 2022, certificates of deposit of MOP398,478,000
(31 December 2021: MOP3,049,987,000) were issued to Oversea-
Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong Branch.

Trading liabilities

Trading liabilities represent negative fair values of derivative financial
instruments, of which MOP19,907,000 (31 December 2021:
MOP14,976,000) were balances with the ultimate holding company and
immediate holding company.

Current tax payable and deferred tax liabilities
Current income tax payable of MOP61,149,000 (31 December 2021:
MOP50,025,000) in the statement of financial position represents the
provision for Macau Complementary Tax for the year.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

89

Annual Report 2022



@%ﬁﬂ(?%ﬁﬁ

OCBCWING HANG

Bt 7% R 3} B &
Notes to the Financial Statements

(EPIBEF Tz s)r » Btk sk) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

23 AEENHERELZERIEERE 23 Current tax payable and deferred tax liabilities
(#&) (Continued)
EHRAZEERIBAE: Deferred income tax liabilities recognised:

EfUATEA
HE-3=R-% -3 )
FAEMEE
WBEZERMEE BERfETTH a5t
Revaluation of
financial assets
measured
at fair value
through other

comprehensive Revaluation of
income bank premises Total
BEIENIERE - Deferred tax arising from:
202112 A31H & & At 31 December 2021 (156,758) (57,382) (214,140)
& B A M BR Charged to reserves 3,637 5,076 8,713
2022F 12 A31H & & At 31 December 2022 (153,121) (52,306) (205,427)
2021 F 1 AR & &% At 1 January 2021 (173,938) (57,397) (231,335)
{8 18 A BR Charged to reserves 17,180 15 17,195
2021512 A31H & & At 31 December 2021 (156,758) (57,382) (214,140)
24 HMtBRIBE R EE 24 Other accounts and provisions
2022 2021
L R Acceptances outstanding 47,989 47,722
BEEENMETER Provisions for liabilities and accrued charges 69,468 67,123
BIESHRZTEERIAZ Negative fair value of derivative financial
BRFEECTE instruments held for hedging (Note) 9,829 41,584
INES Cashier order 29,900 21,876
Hib & & Other liabilities 140,971 74,110
WARBENAHEUEEEE 2 Expected credit loss on contingent liabilities
TEARfE IR (M 5E17) and commitments to extend credit
(Note 17) 3,377 -
301,534 252,415
et A ABEEBIERATMNITESRIAZ Note: The balance represents negative fair values of derivative financial instruments,
BAFEEQIFI12A318 - HHR) - all of which were held with the immediate holding company (31 December
2021: same).
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25 BRARFEE

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

25 Share capital and reserves

(@) B= (a) Share capital
2022 2021
R R B AR Authorised, issued and fully paid:
1,200,000 % 2 & i AX 1,200,000 ordinary shares of
F X100 FF T MOP100 each 120,000 120,000
(b) % (b) Reserves

(i) —mfEE (i) General reserve
—REBHRBKEFERX I The general reserve was set up from the transfer of
J& AR B . unappropriated profits and is available for distribution.

(i) EEHB (i) Legal reserve
ETRERRM SRR FEES Legal reserve was set up in accordance with Article 60 of
[E %32/93/M 5 7% < F 6015k R Decree Law No 32/93/M and Article 432 of the Macau
FIRE BN E 43215 2 R TE KL © Commercial Code.

(iii) REEMHFEHB (iii) Investment revaluation reserve
RESHRBELEAZRILER Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
ZUAATEEFEBEET A changes in the fair value of those financial assets measured at
Hih 2K EF S EE A fair value through other comprehensive income/available-for-
EeREECZRFAAREBEEYE sale until the assets are derecognised. It does not represent
B RESHFEBEILIIFEERZ realised profits and is not available for distribution.

FE - WETARE o

(iv) |BITITHEMFEE (iv) Bank premises revaluation reserve
WITITH B FHEBFEREME Bank premises revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
HEEERRIEBRZBITTUR net change in the fair value of bank premises under the
FFAREBEEE - RITITULER revaluation model until the assets are derecognised. It
HEWIFEERZFE - BT does not represent realised profits and is not available for
AR E o distribution.

(v) EERE (v) Regulatory reserve

BRERBHERBLRIN  KITR
4 & B 5012/2021-AMCM 5% 18
ECHRERLEETRE  ARRE
B ERZBREEEE R &
ERBCEYHERBARBRERRT
VB B 15 o 20224128318 -
— % B5 B % % #2 2 /155,680,000

m B
M BEEEREBREAT
RPITT e

Regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
the AMCM for prudential supervision purposes in addition
to expected credit loss recognised in accordance with
AMCM Guideline Notice 012/2021-AMCM. Movements in
the regulatory reserve are appropriated directly through
unappropriated profits. As at 31 December 2022, the balance
of general regulatory reserve is MOP155,680,000 and nil for
specific regulatory reserve.
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26 AAREHRAERE

(a)

92

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

26 Contingent liabilities and commitments

RARBEHERAEUNEREE (a) Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit
SARABEBRAEREARENEER Contingent liabilities and commitments arises from forward asset
E RERBHFZRBRIBS - W purchases, amounts owing on partly paid-up shares and securities,
EHFR BERECZEELERH forward deposits placed, asset sales or other transactions with
WX UREEEBEIE  BER recourse, as well as credit-related instruments which include, letters
NIRHEENERE  BREAE - of credit, guarantees and commitments to extend credit. The
BEEEEBIAMIRZER X risk involved in these credit instruments is essentially the same as
BHEEHREETEPMARZEER the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
SR - ATFESENIERIEGLHEE The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk should
FROMBEFPEAK SR ZEBR S the contract be fully drawn upon and the client defaults. Since a
B HRAHOERLEAEENESE significant portion of guarantees and commitments is expected
HmIEH T EREN - G HMEE to expire without being drawn upon, the total of the contract
WARERARZBERE © amounts is not representative of future cash flows.
HHEEERRMECERRREER The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted
BEEON/0155 2 R E - FTA Z & amounts range from 0% to 100% in accordance with AMCM
RN F0% £100% ° Guideline Notice 011/2015-AMCM.
ITNAREIEE XAz KA EBE R The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
BT EME: significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:
2022 2021
EEEEERIESR Direct credit substitutes 41,677 40,800
RHGEB2IRED Transaction-related contingencies 61,856 58,941
BSBBIZIARE Trade-related contingencies 38,569 35,139
H h A4 Other commitments
— RAHIBRIF A £ — With an original maturity over 1 year 434,075 554,864
— AR HUH - Which are unconditionally
cancellable 2,032,637 1,889,048
&5k Total 2,608,814 2,578,792
EERBKMEDSE Credit risk weighted amount 306,953 364,274
M2022F12A31H A N B F & & As at 31 December 2022, the amount of customer liability
47,989,00032 F3 JT (2021512 4318 : under acceptances is MOP47,989,000 (31 December 2021:
47,722,000 F9 ) B BT H M BRIE MOP47,722,000) which has been included as acceptance
FEFBRE AL &% - outstanding under “Other accounts and provisions”.
2022F FF 3R
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(b) BEAREME

REEALEEEEML AREM R
RPEHEREZERNAZNT

ERERRTANZAX

contracted for

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

26 Contingent liabilities and commitments
(Continued)
(b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments for acquisition of tangible fixed assets
outstanding not provided for in the financial report are as follows:

2022 2021

Expenditure authorised and

9,069 6,162

(0 REMERE
REFAIHENEERE
ENMEERIALENT:

RERIE

() Operating lease commitments
The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for properties and equipment are payable as

follows:
2022 2021
1R Within one year 3,484 2,903
1A FBESFR After one year but within five years 3,766 2,151
7,250 5,054

RN EERERABAZEDE
MEE - -HEFH MYV E1E5F
(2021 :1ZE55) - EmEr BELNEE
tiE R BERE - MIBRHNITTBIES
RFE -

27 fTAEEWMT A
ETAREMBAN  EBERTHY
R —ERSEEAEELRBME -

TES BT AT RERITHEIME - FE R
REEMIGZAMETZEDR - 1= 5N

EREEMABEEERFEY R T4
CRTATMBREBRITAAZ 2THE
@ o RTPIAZ E2TETAEMEXLE
KW EBREIINTETE - EGTA
| TAETAIAFKEESXE TR -

HETAZABRSELNBRERARRTK
ZR58 U THKEREBREE -

The Bank leases a number of properties and equipment under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one
to five years (2021: one to five years), with an option to renew the
lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

27 Derivatives financial instruments
Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on the value
of one or more underlying assets or indices.

Derivative financial instruments arise from forward, swap and option
transactions undertaken by the Bank in the foreign exchange, interest
rate and equity markets.

Derivative financial instruments are also used to manage the Bank’s own
exposures to market risk as part of its asset and liability management
process. The principal derivative instruments used by the Bank are
interest and foreign exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily
over-the-counter derivatives. For accounting purposes, derivatives are
classified as held for trading or held for hedging.

The notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of

transactions outstanding at the reporting date and do not represent
amounts at risk.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

27 Derivatives financial instruments (continued)

() FTETAZE%2HE (i) Notional amounts of derivatives
2022
HEE®K Hit BIEF
8 g kEERR &t
Qualifying Others,
for hedge including
accounting  held for trading Total
EXEH Exchange rate contracts
- EH - Forwards - - -
— B - Options purchased - 6,528 6,528
— h - Options written - 6,529 6,529
MEEEEH Interest rate swap contracts 2,493,756 1,359,440 3,853,196
REARBED Equity contracts
- BAHE - Options purchased - 3,859 3,859
— h ~ Options written - 3,859 3,859
2,493,756 1,380,215 3,873,971
2021
SRRV Hit - B
e m g5t EFEERZ &5
Qualifying Others,
for hedge including
accounting held for trading Total
ERGL Exchange rate contracts
- &8 - Forwards - 72,287 72,287
- BAHRE - Options purchased - 2,667 2,667
— R - Options written - 2,667 2,667
FERBEHEH Interest rate swap contracts 1,505,178 1,091,695 2,596,873
R EE N E L Equity contracts
— A H - Options purchased - 2,799 2,799
— R - Options written - 2,799 2,799
1,505,178 1,174,914 2,680,092

94 2025F%K
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

(@) REHMBESZITETAZEEZESH
TERARITEIARBEANEE
SR REFMNKINBMANIN - T
TAZEZSBERNREBRHRTK
ZR58 U THKREBREER -

27 Derivatives financial instruments (continued)

(@) Notional amounts of derivatives by maturity
The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of
derivatives of the Bank by relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining periods to settlement at the reporting date. The notional
amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume of outstanding
transactions at the reporting date and do not represent amounts at
risk.

2022
157/ 1EQ EESER SEHRE At
Over one year but

Within one year within five years Over five years Total

EEaH) Exchange rate contracts
- 25 - Forwards - - - -
- BABE ~ Options purchased 6,528 - - 6,528
- hi - Options written 6,529 - - 6,529
MEZHEH Interest rate swap contracts 1,324,249 2,528,947 - 3,853,196

REEHHEY Fquity contracts
- BAHE - Options purchased 3,859 - - 3,859
- hHHE - Options written 3,859 - - 3,859
1,345,024 2,528,947 - 3,873,971
2021
15K (B SRELE SEI £ CHI
Over one year but

Within one year within five years Qver five years Total

EXEH Exchange rate contracts
- B - Forwards 72,287 - - 72,287
- BAHE - Options purchased 2,667 - - 2,667
- hHHE - Options written 2,667 - - 2,667
FlEEBEH Interest rate swap contracts 69,074 2,527,799 - 2,596,873

REHBEEL Equity contracts

- BAE - Options purchased 2,799 - - 2,799
— bl - Options written 2,799 - - 2,799
152,293 2521799 - 2,680,092
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(b)

NP EEZYE
AFEBEZHHAEIEZRSFIEREEH -
FRBHRARBILERLETEEEED
NEEBEBEMSANEREMBAME
g o PA2022F12A318 - H1E QA FE
EHFNTETAENFEARATEES
47,359,000} 9 Jr (20214124318 :
41,584,00038F9 7T ) °

FW - HHT A 789,405,000
R FI 7T (20214F A 2 I & : 63,905,000
SRPITT) o - R E B G 8 E
S IE B 18 %k 5 88,474,00038 F9 7t (2021
FRZIB k62,134,000 5T)  F
W BERE RRATR LN AFTE &
79 U 25 A173,00038 P9 7T (20216 A 2
184k 1 6,323,00032F97¢) °

2022F F 3

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

27 Derivatives financial instruments (continued)
(b) Fair value hedges

The fair value hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps.
The interest rate swaps are used to protect against changes in the
fair value of certain fixed rate assets due to movements in market
interest rates. At 31 December 2022, the net positive fair value
of derivatives held as fair value hedges was MOP47,359,000 (31
December 2021: MOP41,584,000).

The gains on the hedging instruments for the year were
MOP89,405,000 (gains for the year 2021: MOP63,905,000).
The losses on the hedged items attributable to the hedged risk
for the year were MOP88,474,000 (losses for the year 2021:
MOP62,134,000). The gains on the breaking cost for hedging for
the year were MOP173,000 (losses for the year 31 December 2021:
MOP6,323,000).
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28 Notes to the cash flow statement
(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash flows

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

REHIERR generated from operating activities
2022 2021
BT Operating activities
B 53 B A Profit before taxation 317,708 410,341
HEWT Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 22,772 22,689
RERFEEEE 2 FEX Net losses on disposal of tangible fixed
assets 22 283
BEEUATEEFZAHEZE Net losses from disposal of financial
SAEMEERE 22/ assets measured at fair value through
BEZFHEKX other comprehensive income 209 -
REAHHEESHEE Z/FWE  Net gains on disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets - (23,848)
DEMEBESZFOTM),HE  Amortisation of net (discount)/premium
of debt securities (29,383) 7,920
DEBEITERE 2T Amortisation of discount of certificates
of deposit issued 18,906 6,012
B B A Dividend income (16,467) (9,759)
SNEE N IR K (M es) Foreign exchange losses/(gains) 37,800 (5,719)
EHEABAREMEERE Net charge of expected credit loss and
BR/REBRREEZ other credit impairment charges/
5 1B % impairment losses and allowance 9,166 824
NEEBEZEHE Fair value changes in relation to hedging 99,060 62,134
EEECRBEZED Changes in working capital and
provisions 459,793 470,877
FHRMSERZEERE Decrease in minimum statutory deposits
TR with AMCM 73,480 10,717
BH5RERD Decrease in trade bills - 2,007
BEERBEEGEM FHL (Increase)/decrease in trading assets (4,588) 28,890
EEFERREMERERD, Decrease/(increase) in gross advances to
(3% 40) customers and other accounts 2,272,050 (132,656)
RAHBRA=ZM@AKU LY Increase in amounts due from ultimate
FHEBERARERZR holding company, immediate holding
Bt &8 A A) 2 BB IE N company and fellow subsidiaries with
original maturity over three months (787,554) (134,570)
WITREREMDEREE 2 (Decrease)/increase in deposits and
TR REHCR D) 1 balances of banks and other financial
institutions (129,439) 249,441
BREES TH HBEREM Decrease in current, fixed, savings and
TR other deposits of customers (1,392,009) (1,394,108)
BBRATEREBECRD),/ N (Decrease)/increase in certificates of
deposit issued (2,680,144) 636,163
EERBRAGBEMCRD) Increase/(decrease) in trading liabilities 6,239 (18,189)
H BRI MEFEE N CRd) Increase/(decrease) in other accounts and
provisions 47,479 (54,293)
ENREEZERAR  -EBER Increase in amounts due to ultimate
RAIRARME ATz FIE holding company, immediate holding
N company and fellow subsidiaries 2,037,663 104,824
EETHEAZRSTFE Net cash used in the operations (97,030) (230,897)
BT PTAS # 70 A  FE I Complementary and withholding tax paid (50,361) (51,822)
HELTZHFERACREFE Net cash used in operating activities (147,391) (282,719)
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

28 Notes to the cash flow statement (continuea)
(b) Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
RE RIFWRITRZE Cash and balances with banks, central
FRIRITREM SR banks and other financial institutions
FE (P 3E14) (Note 14) 1,077,417 1,194,065
FREEERAR - EB#ER  Amounts due from ultimate holding
NCIDSEEES V= MNS B/ S company, immediate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries
- B e RIFRIRITR KA — Cash and balances with banks 160,402 198,883
-REAEREAE=MANLANTELR - Placements with banks with original
T ERAT R ¥ K18 maturity within three months 966,348 942,940
AHEECERMEE Available-for-sale financial assets
-RFISERE¥ER — AMCM monetary bills - 654,911
W FERURF S B R 2 A E & Less: Minimum statutory deposits with
7R (M 5E14) AMCM (Note 14) (390,730) (464,210)
1,813,437 2,526,589

29 EXHEALRS
() TEEBRABZME

TEERABZME  BEENMNIRT
BEEHE - RIMT:

29 Material related party transactions
(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
incurred on the Bank’s directors, is as follows:

2022 2021

R HE B R A Short-term employee benefits 13,666 14,551
BER 218 A Post-employment benefits 1,417 1,333
15,083 15,884

(b) BHEZLERAR EREZERAF

98

FMBARREIEEEABZRS

RERRA  NTHEKEERAPER
RITARRAE EBERABER K
FHRITBERRAA  BAEMBRAR LT
BEEABZRS BOE-REFX
B R BRI ETT -

BERBEAVBHRREMBIT 2R
SRS FRZW - BBRREK
W HINBEBEBEZREREHR R T
BREFHIMT

2022F F 3

(b) Transactions with ultimate holding company, immediate

holding company, fellow subsidiaries and key management
personnel

During the year, the Bank entered into transactions with the Bank’s
ultimate holding company, Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Limited and immediate holding company, OCBC Wing Hang Bank
Limited, fellow subsidiaries and key management personnel in the
ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the income and expenses for the
year, on and off-statement of financial position outstanding at the
reporting date and corresponding average balances for the period
are set out below:
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29 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with ultimate holding company, immediate
holding company, fellow subsidiaries and key management

(#&) personnel (Continued)
(i) WARZH (i) Income and expenses
2022 2021
FEKA Interest income 25,216 19,175
FEZH Interest expenses (67,561) (42,272)
Hit W= (BB PEBESE Other income (including losses
ZHEK) incurred for hedging activities) 119,884 76,997
BIEEERABRZEMTAZ Net losses from financial
FEK instruments held for trading (847) (937)
BEEH Operating expenses (40,589) (41,062)
(i) MBRRRARZER (ii) On-statement of financial position outstanding
Ending balance Average balance
2022 2021 2022 2021
BE Assets
BEREMETRE  BRET  Cash and balances with banks, central
LREtEBEETE banks and other financial institutions 160,402 198,883 190,431 228,006
THEMFITAE  FRET  Placements with banks, central banks
REhEREERE and other financial institutions 1,907,340 1,100,378 1,375,757 1,388,900
NATBEHFEEEZHEA  Financial assets measured at fair value
E2ENEZSREE through other comprehensive income 173,197 - 180,371 -
THEEsBERE Available-for-sale financial assets - 189,664 - 31,561
RPEF EMEERTE Advances to customers and other accounts
EEABEYGE and amounts due from
key management personnel 3,644 1,924 6,743 231,378
2,244,583 1,490,849 1,753,302 1,879,845
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

29 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with ultimate holding company, immediate
holding company, fellow subsidiaries and key management
personnel (Continued)

(ii) On-statement of financial position outstanding

(Continued)
EERLH TG
Ending balance Average balance
2022 2021 2022 2021
g8f Liabilities
BORSREMEREEL Deposits and balances of banks and
T other financial institutions 3,442,519 1,405,293 2,604,414 1,272,098
BETERE Certificates of deposit issued 398,477 3,049,987 1,330,252 2,387,760
RPEH EH #E. Current, fixed, savings and other deposits
EMGHREEEEAE of customers and amounts due to
JERFRIE key management personnel 2,820 2,602 4,231 10,280
EEERER Other accounts and provisions 6,449 8,233 10,174 9,841
3,850,265 4,466,115 3,949,071 3,679,979

N

(i) FTEEMT A 2R

(iii) Derivative financial instruments outstanding

EERLH Tt
Ending balance Average balance
2022 2001 2022 2021
AESH Notional amounts
EHEZAH Forward exchange rate contracts 6,528 74,954 39,465 528,332
FlEEBEH Interest rate swap contracts 3,853,196 2,596,873 3,183,724 2,667,700
REHBEY Equity contracts 3,859 2,799 3,418 10,746

(0 EEEX

HE2022FNRANBIEFEZHBE
RKEREHRABEZTQ021F 1 £) -

d) FA - BESREFLAETFEEAL

100

Z R IR AR (B 48 5k 2 4 (2021
FE)

2022F F 3

(c) Loans to directors
No significant loans have been outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

(d) During the year, no allowance for impairment losses has been made
in respect of the above advances to related parties (2021: Nil).
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30 Financial risk management

AITEHERK  BFRRE  UEEX
THASNARBERR - NTABZAE
FEREEBREREBEMRRSL - UHER -
AR CERREFEERR RPESAE
B mERBREEERR - ZEEREE
BE BEFEREDKREETTHULEEL
ZEgkE YHERBRERABZEZE
g REZEENEEREEEZBE
EEHRE - N RBESRTEREX
MBI IRE  NERZEZBRRNMEFER
AR o

RIREFIMATE L RERR - Bk
ENREENBER BERMNEF UREXR
EEEEHR -

(@) FERBRER
EERBRRZZEF REBITHA
O AREATHER BHRE -
ME TETAREMER -BEFS
EREAATZEKEEEIFENRE
ZESUMTATERERRER -

IIF

EERREERBINEMER &
EFEBRRNEALRETIEREE
AERHENER - ATHEEBRRE
HETETFEENER  FEHKRE
EENERF BEXROBRGLRER
BE AREBMFSEREHNES
N R PTHRr BT I 2% h ) & 5T R 2R
HEHAREEERRENHBEE

FERBREEREIEHRATHNEER
BE - YRERBREZESEHRAL
- EERRABREREREERRE
B BRERE FEEERE BEX
DEFRL EEEBRERERE -

The Bank has established policies, procedures and limits to manage
various types of risks that the Bank is exposed to. Risk management
processes and management information systems are in place to identify,
measure, monitor and control credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and
operational risk. The risk management policies, procedures and limits
are approved by the Board of Directors or its designated committee, and
are monitored and reviewed regularly by the relevant risk management
committees, such as the Credit Committee and the Asset and Liability
Management Committee (“ALCO"). Internal auditors perform regular
audits and independent checking to ensure compliance with the policies
and procedures.

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each of the
above risks, the Bank’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risks, and the Bank’s management of capital.

(a) Credit risk management
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty in a
transaction may default. It arises from the lending, trade finance,
treasury, derivatives and other activities undertaken by the Bank.
The Board of Directors has delegated the Bank’s credit risk
management to the Credit Committee, which is chaired by the
Bank’s General Manager.

The credit risk management function is independent of the
business units. It oversees the implementation of credit policies
and ensures the quality of credit evaluation and approval. Credit
approval is conducted in accordance with the Bank’s credit policy,
which defines the credit extension criteria, the credit approval
and monitoring processes, the loan classification system and
impairment policy. The credit policy also takes into account the
guidelines issued by the AMCM and accounting standards issued by
Government of Macau Special Administrative Region with respect
to large exposures and impairment requirements.

Guidelines to manage credit risk have been laid down in the Bank’s
credit policies, which are regularly reviewed and approved by the
Credit Committee. The credit policies cover the delegated lending
authorities, credit extension criteria, credit monitoring process, loan
classification system, credit recovery and impairment policy.
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(@ F&
0]

(i)

(iii)

[ B B (4E)

TERFERR
CEEE-RERNEGREME
BEREFPRMH -BEEREEARY
IZFEREERMERE - A17
BEZHEBENEF  UFHEEE
RHHFARHNEEEERR
NEREHZEBRHEST © 5
CEREFPME ATEHE—F
EARMERSYEFHE M
BZEEBRAL - AITHERH
185177 5 R AR &9 8 5K A B fE 3K
ABERIERRE  TwmER
EEFEBRIIFES AR - K17
NEEERTEE  BERERE
KRB AR TR RERE
TTEE MR E R -

AAIKEETZEBANGEERRE
BREE - BHENEEREDE
EERRRBERINIENRS
BF TERERNER - BE

ZESTHEERIHEHAMER
[\ B 1B B S R K B R
ZERFERR

ATHEEEERR RZER
FrRRAETERTEMNFEM
H5E KR8/ ER R A8 B i AR B
Ry TEFERBRNEETE
EENUIREREEFER#E
THADMREEER - KT
BERIAEHRRETEER &
HEZMETERGKREEPA

Ao

REEAMZER
BEEEHENARRAAEEN
Rk AEEREHERTEPS
BOEERRER - Hit - B
RHWBENATFPABEREH
REINEEHF HERER
HREL -

2022F F 3

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

30 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Corporate credit risk

The corporate lending is generally made to customers with
strong financial background. The principal means of managing
credit risk is the credit approval process. The Bank has policies
and procedures to evaluate the potential credit risk of a
particular counterparty or transaction and to approve the
transaction. For corporate clients, the Bank has a detailed
credit review system that is applied to each counterparty
on a regular basis. The Bank also has limits for exposure to
each individual industry and for borrowers and groups of
borrowers, regardless of whether the exposure is in the form
of loans or non-funded exposures. The Bank also has a review
process to ensure the proper level of review and approval
depending on the size of the facility and risk grading of the
credit.

The Bank undertakes ongoing credit review and monitoring
at various level. The credit policies promote early detection
of counterparty, industry or product exposures that require
special attention. The Credit Committee oversees the overall
portfolio risk as well as individual problem loans and potential
problem loans on a regular basis.

Retail credit risk

The Bank's retail credit policy and approval process are
designed for the fact that there are high volumes of relatively
homogeneous, small value transactions in each retail loan
category. Because of the nature of retail banking, the credit
policies are based primarily on statistical analyses of risks with
respect to different products and types of customers. The
Bank based its own and industry experience to determine
and periodically revise product terms and desired customer
profiles.

Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit risk
involved in extending loan facilities to customers. These
transactions are, therefore, subject to the same credit
application, portfolio maintenance and collateral requirements
as for customers applying for loans.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

30 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (Continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
geographic, economic or industry factors similarly affect

groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is
material in relation to the Bank’s total exposures. The Bank

(1) Maximum exposure
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting

does not have significant exposure to any individual or group
of customers or counterparties except for the amounts due
from immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

date without taking into consideration of any collaterals
held or other credit enhancements is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial assets in the statement
of financial position after deducting any impairment

H{E ° %A= R allowance. A summary of the maximum exposure is as
T follows:
2022 2021
FREEFTR 2 « R RIRTT Balances with banks, central banks
N E b & Bh % #8508 and other financial institutions 554,845 870,082
EERREE Trading assets 19,333 14,745
BERPERREMRIE Advances to customers and other
accounts 20,442,268 22,539,712
JEW S AR PERR A A Amounts due from ultimate holding
HEERARR company, immediate holding
EES NG E S company and fellow subsidiaries 2,072,979 1,300,498
NEEERFE HE % B Financial assets measured at
aJr)\E@iEHﬁZﬁZ fair value through other
CRMEE comprehensive income 8,227,910 -
At ESmEE Available-for-sale financial assets - 8,674,156
IS EAR LR EME(EA  Financial guarantees and other credit
fHzAaE related contingent liabilities 142,102 134,880
BoEqE R A M8 E A Loan commitments and other credit
Bz A related commitments 2,466,711 2,443,912
33,926,148 35,977,985
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30 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (Continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (Continued)
(2) Geographical analysis of loans and advances to

AT customers
2022
CRAERABR HEEX BHEREX
ERNBRAH (ZEANUL) (fEpIE=E) (%3 E)
Overdue loans Impaired loans Expected
Gross loans and advances (individually credit loss
and advances  (over 3 months) determined) (Stages 3)
B Macau 18,434,110 28,931 91,168 4,989
&8 Hong Kong 938,026 - - -
HEA China 702,592 - 1,259 -
Hig Other 164,455 - - -
20,239,183 28,931 92,427 4,989
2021

EBRHERAR REER EHEREX
ERA2ReE (:1IHLAt) (fE5lEE) (£33 E)
Overdue loans Impaired loans Expected
Gross loans and advances (individually credit loss
and advances (over 3 months) determined) (Stages 3)
R Macau 20,701,418 21,497 21,746 1,702
N Hong Kong 1,207,678 - - -
RE A China 510,881 - - -
Hith Other 159,329 - - -
22,579,306 21,497 21,746 1,702

A LB A Bz DI TVIRE
RAZFESBLT B RER

REEE - —&mE &8
e ERESLIFEX
AFEZ - ERGFES
BE R -

ﬁ%ﬁ% TRANE D 15
S5 55 B 18 5 47 0 M E16(0) 79 B2

104 20225 5%H

The above geographical analysis is classified by the
location of the borrowers after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when a
loan is guaranteed by a party situated in an area different
from the counterparty.

Analysis of credit risk concentration by the industrial sector of
advances to customers is disclosed in Note 16(b).
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30 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (Continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (Continued)

Tt FE 57 28 2 (B K H T (3) Geographical analysis of debt securities
2022 2021
REEREX
REE (53R RHME BRERS
Carrying Expected credit Carrying
amount loss (Stages 3) amount Specific provision
B Hong Kong 455,006 - 387,997 -
2 Macau 3,151,810 - 1,931,756 -
FERH China 2,010,335 - 3,678,199 -
o K E Rest of Asia-Pacific 402,386 - 418,565 -
BN Europe 490,668 - 591,132 -
g} Other 337,875 - 350,600 -
6,848,080 - 7,358,249 -
B dn & Bt = FHIEH 4) Collaterals and other credit enhancements

AIREFERMIFAEME
B\ EMEEZMER -
BeFrRMERELANIE
Hah e

BHENFRENEREE
m# A ERm R EMbER
RAMQXFEEMGET:

SRBHEFRECZREE
58 2 I S At
ERERTZ N FEE

The Bank holds collaterals against advances to customers
in the form of mortgages over property, other registered
securities over assets, cash deposits and guarantees.

An estimate of the fair value of collaterals and other
credit enhancements held against past due but not
impaired financial assets is as follows:

Fair value of collaterals and other
credit enhancements held
against financial assets that
are past due but not impaired

2022 2021

2,481,546 806,535

HRERRBHAIN R
BE  FREFRNHERZN
RNEMTAUEE - REE
XFEREFMBAUTIAHSR
TEHEAEERIN  EBE
F BEEIRHEMEZERER
FEER -

AT HE B R B
RRBERERELEEARK
goWH AT E-HME
NRFBENERmz BRE
EHRFELETRWE o

Collateral held as security for financial assets other
than loans and advances depends on the nature of the
instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other eligible
bills are generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-
backed securities and similar instruments, which are
secured by portfolios of financial instruments.

The Bank’s policies regarding obtaining collateral have
not significantly changed during the reporting period and
there has been no significant change in the overall quality
of the collateral held by the Bank since the prior period.

105
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(a)

FERRERE)
(ivi FERBNES(E)

(5) BEPRIRTTREEZLS)
TREEZIFEEE
HEXZEERBRERT R
RAGTEEEERBRER)
A—% ZNEURXZHFE
B R B FE AR - 3 BHE R X 5
HFRTME -

REER  RBERFRE
BEELBRIERBIESF
R# B Em DT 2 BB

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

30 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (Continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (Continued)
(5) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to

customers and banks
Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the
same way as the Bank manages its corporate lending risk,
and risk gradings are applied to the counterparties with
individual counterparty limits set.

At the reporting date, the credit quality of investment in
debt securities analysed by designation of external credit
assessment institution, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services

BEHEEEHERNOT: or their equivalents, is as follows:
2022 2021
AA-Z AA+ AA-to AA+ 3,179,922 1,856,445
A-ZE A+ A- to A+ 3,438,188 4,958,199
KR A- Lower than A- 53,744 163,197
=R Unrated 176,227 380,408
6,848,081 7,358,249

(b) ZBELEKSE (b) Liquidity risk management

RBETRBREERERENENE
ERRAEMBNPEROER - 17
BRIV AP E SRR EIEHEK - #ER
EEEHPEEFEENRDES °

RBELHESEERMREERAE
EEZEENNHEE BEREE
BLZEEHRaRERE UE AR
B MBEEREMAZERDE
CRBNEBHBOALANK  BF
EERDEcRAREREE KR
EEANRDESHENER &

MoFEREERDEZRR AR
EFERPECRREERRE -BF

SRERDE TR KENBOR - #
FUEBRDESARAANTEL
B UHEERADESERSERAR
REERBAESREEEZAER
B2 -

RAR—REFEBTNESFTER
BRI BEARDUENEESIN  TEER®
RIRTRIFFETIH - ZH - RITI0
HEFRENEREER  LWEMEMK
BEEHNAREESHTFR - A1TIFEH
RRBESMRRETENRG - LA
REARFEBRDES - UTZA
TEREERABRROMNIIRN &
SHRBEGNINHARMINR

2022F F 3

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Bank’s inability to fund an increase
in assets or meet its obligations as they fall due. The Bank has
established liquidity management policies for ensuring adequate
liquidity is maintained at all times.

Liquidity is managed day-to-day by the Funding and Liability
Management Department (“FLM"”) under the direction of ALCO.
ALCO, which comprises personnel from senior management,
treasury function, risk management, financial management and
other business areas that could affect liquidity risk, is responsible
for overseeing the liquidity risk management, in particular
implementation of appropriate liquidity policies and procedures,
identifying, measuring and monitoring liquidity risk, and control
over the liquidity risk management process. The Board of Directors
approves the liquidity risk strategy and policies, maintains
continued awareness of the overall liquidity risk profile, and ensures
liquidity risk is adequately managed and controlled by senior
management within the established risk management framework.

To cater for funding requirements during ordinary course of
business, sufficient liquid assets are held, and access to the
interbank market is maintained. In addition, adequate standby
facilities are maintained in order to meet any unexpected and
material cash outflow. The Bank also performs regular stress tests
on its liquidity position to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained
at all times. The following tables set out the details of the analysis
of the Bank’s material assets and liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining periods at reporting date to the
contractual maturity date.
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30 Bf 7% R B B IR 42) 30 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) "HESAMRERE(E) (b) Liquidity risk management (Continued)
() EEREERBREAZESHNIEA (i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based on the
Lo EEEREARE 5 WEIR D TR remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date
2022
1AL 3EANL 1§50
HEER AR E3EAA B1%ER B5% SEN L b L
Over 1 month  Over 3months  Over 1 year
Repayable Within but within butwithin ~ but within
on demand 1 month 3 months 1 year Syears  Over5 years Undated Total
BE Assets
BERERETEE  Cashand balances with banks,
hARIRE central banks and other finandia
SRRETA institutions 578,682 107,989 - - - - 390,730 1,077,401
EERREE Trading assets - - - - - - 19333 19,333
EEERREMEE  Adances to customers and other
accounts 8121 1,270,856 375,329 2,398,710 7,336,694 8,717,758 - 20,186,568
ERELERAT . Amounts due from ultimate
EBERAAR halding company, immediate
REZMELRFE  holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 160,402 821,01 1,089,755 (4,249) - - - 2,012,919
WATEBHFEEL  Financial assets measured at
REHAZHEE  fairvalue through other
WazeBEE comprehensive income - 324,587 606,656 3,090,062 2,826,775 - 1,379,830 8,227910
EfEEREMEE  Other assets and other accounts 21780 53,185 15,402 24216 307 n 664,755 846,857
BEE Total assets 848,085 2,583,688 217182 5,508,739 10,200,576 8,718,130 2,454,648 32,431,048
&f Liabilites
FARERZMER  Deposits and balances of banks
BRERRES and other finandial instiutions 100 - 120,461 - - - - 120,561
KPS T8 @& Curent, fied, savings and other
REKER deposits of customers 12,746,624 2,024,861 2,617,454 4,513,206 210,825 - - 22,512,976
BETENE Certificates of depositissued - - 398,478 - - - - 398,478
BERBAR Trading liabilties - - - - - - 21,215 1,215
EASRARAT - Amounts due to ultmate holding
EEBRLAR company, immediate holding
RAWBAAZA  company and fellow subsidiaries 3,856 2.203/25 264,772 883,623 56,031 - - 3,451,407
EpERRER Other accounts and provisions 145,504 61,656 45,157 9,919 2,848 - 215,936 568,110
agk Total liabilities 12,896,174 4,729,648 3,446,322 5,493,748 269,704 - 31,151 27,072,141

B(BE)/EEEE  Net (iabilty)asset gap (12,048,089) (2145960)  (1,329,140) 14,991 9,930,872 8,718,130 2217497 5,358,301

RERERAE Unrecognised loan commitments 1,239,259 28,637 153,22 611,568 425,590 8,436 - 2,466,712
HHERREMERR Finandal quarantees and other
L PERSL credit rlated contingent
liabilties 5,098 15,468 27,104 82,655 1" - - 142,102

1,244,357 44,105 180,326 694,223 431367 8,436 - 2,608,814
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30 Bf 7% R B B IR 42) 30 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) "HESAMRERE(E) (b) Liquidity risk management (Continued)
() EEREERBEREAZEHNEHAL (i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based on the
ZERMSBHRE S NWER D TR (E) remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date (Continued)
2021
WEANE  3ERNE 1)t
HEER 8RR {B3@ Ak EE 185% SEE R %
Over T month ~ Over 3 months Over 1 year
Repayable Within but within but within but within
on demand 1 month 3 months 1 year Syears  Over 5 years Undated Total
BE Assets
BEREMBARE  Cash and balances with banks,
hRRTRER central banks and other financia
SHEENE institutons 624,728 105,127 - - - - 464,210 1,194,065
525 Trade bl - - - - - - - -
BEMBAE Trading assets - - - - - - 14,745 14,745
ZRER Advances to customers 19,825 1776662 838025 2174200 7058641 10482504 - D398
EREBARAAR  Amounts due from immediate
RZHBAFAZA  holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 198,884 1,063,385 - 38,229 - - - 1,300,498
EHESBEE  Avlableforsale finandal assets - 439,987 1062221 2,260,397 3,595,644 - 1315.907 8,676,156
EREEREBER  Other asets and other accounts 4647 737 4491 147 37546 4,67 641,557 87216
BEE Total assets 886,084 3432398 1942737 4,484,297 10,691,831 10,486,781 2436419 34,360,547
&f Liabilites
FAREREAMEE  Deposis and balances of banks
BRI RER and other finandil institutions - - 250,000 - - - - 250,000
REES EH - HE Curent, fied, savings and other
RELESR deposits of customers 15,128,074 3,752,556 3,181,503 1841982 810 - - 23,904,985
BEARE Certificates of depost issued - 481,880 1,685,903 882,204 - - - 3,049,987
SERLER Trading liabiltes : - - : - - 14,976 14,976
EREBRRAAR  Amounts due to immediate
RAMBAAZA  holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 4193 48942 899,380 405,937 - 55,292 - 1,413,744
AhEE Other liblties 127580 25206 54,620 5271 - - 256,877 516,580
agk Total liabilities 15,259,847 4,308,604 6,071,400 3,182,400 810 55,292 271,853 29,150,272

S(8E)/EELE  Net labilty)asset gap (14373763) @606 (418669 130187 10690961 10431489 2164566 5210275
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30 Financial risk management (continued)

(0 THEEARER

5 R 2 18 B AR R AN F
X EXBATELREEFRER
2B MEBATHEARFBZE
BRELHER -

RO AR ERMTAREER
B CNEEHN ELRBRRESA
TETR AZXWSEAR -

E=RMERAETSAREERR
HEEZBR BEEABEEZAES®
EETEZEHNREETSRARZBE
BIEE SRR EEREEER
IR ERBE R BERE - ZRFRE
HEERBEEEZESHELR2ED
MERBE - ATTZERRATEEA
fREE -

() FM=xEBRER
RITHRERBRIRE W E L%
EEAY - MEXERIZBATR
BE REMAEEBTENR
EMYC TMEESRERABRE -
HEhBaEERESRERKPR
ETESERREE - KATZH
EXEBHESEENERE  UH
FELKEESMENEBE K17
TMERME =R\ R EMiTET A
BN TR -

ATEREMERAEDRERE
K PRIV B A B M R @ g o (B L
EHEZRRTER-EHN XN
PYPMEYeRMIANITAEA
REZ SO o LRI A A
RPREFE— EEAON R EE

BEYEaNTE -

(c) Market risk management

()

Market risk is the risk arising from the movements in market prices
of on- and off-balance sheet positions in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates as well as equity and commodity prices and the
resulting change in the profit or loss or reserve of the Bank.

The Bank is exposed to market risk on position taken or financial
instruments held or taken such as foreign exchange contracts,
interest rate contracts, fixed income and equity securities and
derivatives instruments.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the policies for the
management of market risks and trading authorities. ALCO has
been delegated the responsibility of controlling and monitoring
market risk including regular review of the risk exposures and the
risk management framework such as the established limits and
stop-losses. The limits are set by ALCO and reviewed on a periodic
basis with reference to market conditions. It is the Bank’s policy
that no limit should be exceeded.

Interest rate risk management

The Bank’s interest rate positions arise from treasury and
commercial banking activities. Interest rate risk primarily results
from the timing differences in the repricing of interest-bearing
assets, liabilities and commitments. It also relates to positions
from non-interest-bearing liabilities including shareholders’ funds
and current accounts, as well as from certain fixed rate loans and
liabilities. Interest rate risk is managed by the FLM within limits
approved by the Board. The Bank also uses interest rate swaps and
other derivatives to manage interest rate risk.

The Bank uses the Price Value of a Basis Point (“PVBP")
measurement to monitor and limit its interest rate risk exposure.
PVBP is a technique involving the calculation of the change in
present value of a financial instrument or a portfolio of instruments
due to a change of one basis point in interest rates. It also provides
a quick tool to evaluate the impact on profit and loss due to a basis
point movement in interest rates.
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FREEEREGE)

AOTRBESRAOMERE A
& RRERTEAMEBERT
RITIRPHOMKERR - RN
EREBAABRTARFEHER
BERNENLRFEERR  RBE
REMERLERZHENES
RAVEREFMNEWBENTE -

ERENERBRIEREESR
B BEBRREZREREPRK
ETERERRAG - HHEMLEA
XEBpHmEERBEELRE SR

& o

UTANEGEERERNRAEER
BEEZERERERREER
B WARARKEREEEF R
RFEBRAKERRBERE
ZFHRIPABR  BERBR -
AITBR BATE ) B A R R
BNERESHAEEFRENN
MERBMER - sECHEY
TEERMTARMNEEHEOM

o

L g
i

I

F10E 2,
TFE10E 2

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

30 Financial risk management (continued)
() Market risk management (Continued)

(i)

Increase in 10 basis points
Decrease in 10 basis points

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The Bank uses scenario analysis and stress test to assess the
banking book interest rate risk the Bank would face under
adverse circumstances. Scenario analysis and stress test are
also devised to assess the impact on net interest income
arising from the optionality of demand and saving deposits,
the prepayment of mortgage loans and the prepayment of
debt securities with embedded options.

Structural interest rate risk arises primarily from the
deployment of non-interest-bearing liabilities, including
shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well as from
certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Structural interest rate
risk is monitored by ALCO.

Interest rate sensitivity sets out below is for risk management
reported to ALCO only in simplified scenario, where demand
and saving deposits remain in the level as they currently are
and mortgage loans are serviced until their original maturity.
Actual changes in the Bank’s profit before tax resulting from
the change in interest rates may differ from the result of the
sensitivity analysis. The effects on interest-bearing financial
instruments and interest rate swaps have been included in this
calculation.

2022 2021
3,431 2,294
(3.431) (2,294)

2022F F 3
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30 Bf 7% R B B IR 42) 30 Financial risk management (continued)
() THEAKBERE) (c) Market risk management (Continued)
() FERABEREE) (i) Interest rate risk management (Continued)
TRETARBMEAFTEEERE The following tables indicate the expected next repricing date
BB T AMEELIA - for the assets and liabilities at the reporting date.
2022
AL 10 L
AR B1ER B5E R SENE %8 Eh
Over
3months  Over 1 year
Within but within but within Non-interest
3 months 1 year 5years  Over 5 years bearing Total
EE Assets
B REMRTAZE . Cashand balances with banks,
RRRTREM central banks and other financial
cRBENE institutions 415,044 - - - 662,357 1,077,401
BEAREE Trading assets - - - - 19,333 19,333
ZEEFREMEE  Advances to customers and
other accounts 18,974,592 572,570 583,516 16,078 295,512 20,442,268
BREHEELR . Amounts due from ultimate holding
EEBRARR company, immediate holding
RAZNBLENE company and fellow subsidiaries 1,965,737 - - - 107,242 2,072,979

IWATEESFERE  Financial assets measured at
BHAARMEE fair value through other

WazeREE comprehensive income 1,379,319 2,902,588 2,566,174 - 1,379,829 8,227910
EMEEREMBE  Other assets and other accounts - - - - 591,157 591,157
BEE Total assets 22,734,692 3,475,158 3,149,690 16,078 3,055,430 32,431,048
g Liabilities
BAREREMERE  Deposits and balances of banks and

BEGRRER other financial institutions 120,561 - - - - 120,561
RPES T Current, fixed, savings and other

BERARER deposits of customers 16,297,666 4,513,206 210,825 - 1491279 22,512,976
BEAGHE Certificates of deposit issued 398,478 - - - - 398,478
BEERRER Trading liabilties - - - - 20,215 2,215
EREBERDTE  Amounts due to immediate holding

FAZMWELFNE company and fellow subsidiaries 2,501,127 883388 54,761 - 12,131 3,451,407
EtEERER Other accounts and provisions - - - - 568,110 568,110
B8R Total liabilties 19,317,832 5,396,594 265,586 - 2,092,735 21,072,747
FZgBEEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 3,416,860 (1,921,436) 2,884,104 16,078 962,695 5,358,301
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30 Financial risk management (continued)
() Market risk management (Continued)

() FERABEREE) (i) Interest rate risk management (Continued)
2021
3EALE 10 £
3fEAR B1ER ER SEILE %8 At
Over
3 months Over 1 year
Within but within but within Non-interest
3 months 1 year Syears  Over 5 years bearing Total
EE Assets
B RERBTAZE . Cashand balances with banks,
PRETREM central banks and other
cRBENE financial institutions 662,694 - - - 531,371 1,194,065
UL Trade bills - - - - - -
BEERBEE Trading assets - - - - 14,745 14,745
FEEFRAMEE  Advances to customers and
other accounts 21347771 305,332 798,496 83,546 4,561 22,539,712
BREBZELAE  Amounts due from immediate
RAZRBARNE holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 1,169,553 37,785 - - 93,160 1,300,498
THHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 2,573,630 1,763,561 3,021,058 - 1,315,907 8,674,156
EEE Others - - - - 637371 637,371
B2E Total assets 25,753,654 2,106,678 3,819,554 83,546 2,597,115 34,360,547
g Liabilities
FOREREMEE  Deposits and balances of banks and
EEFARER other finandial institutions 250,000 - - - - 250,000
EPEE EH- Current, fixed, savings and other
BERAMER deposits of customers 20,542,215 1,841,982 870 - 1519918 23,904,985
BETENE Certificates of deposit issued 2,167,783 882,204 - - - 3,049,987
BERLER Trading liabiliies B - B - 14976 14,976
EFEBARAER  Amounts due to immediate holding
RAZKNBARE company and fellow subsidiaries 945,545 401,595 - 54,766 11,838 1,413,744
Eafk Others - - - - 516,580 516,580
Zef Total liabilities 23,905,543 3,125,781 870 54,766 2,063,312 29,150,272
NEYREEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 1,848,111 (1,019,103) 3,818,684 28,780 533,803 5,210,275
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30 Financial risk management (continued)
() Market risk management (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The following table indicates the effective interest rates for the
assets and liabilities of the year:

2022 2021
FHFMEITRIZE « RIEFT  Placement with banks, central
N B Ath & Bh % 8 508 banks and other financial
institutions 1.19% 0.23%
BEERMBRK Loans and advances to customers 2.68% 2.43%
SREE Financial assets 2.01% 1.38%
RITAEREMES@MEETIK  Deposits and balances of banks
&= and other financial institutions 1.71% 0.28%
EPTFR Deposits from customers 0.63% 0.24%
EX¥RRER (i) Currency risk management

RITHSME B RIREINEE &
BERTER - MBINERAER
HEEERBEEREZBSE
HESEBRMEE -

HRARTTREBHEERABERZIN
BT BERETEE ME
—EaKEs ARERSTR
REATEEEREEEAR - AT
RPWMER 2 AR

The Bank’s foreign exchange positions arise from foreign
exchange dealing and commercial banking operations. All

foreign exchange positions are managed by the FLM within

limits approved by ALCO.

The directors do not consider the Bank to have significant
foreign currency risk as the majority of the Bank’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in Macau patacas, Hong Kong
dollars and United States dollars, which are pegged to each
other. The exposure at the reporting date was as follows:

2022%12A318
31 December 2022
A5k B in Hit &t
MoP HKD usb Others Total
BEE Total assets 43.2% 37.9% 14.8% 41% 100.0%
BEE Total liabilities 43.1% 38.0% 14.8% 41% 100.0%
0.1% -0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
201%12A318
31 December 2021
R B e it At
MOP HKD usb Others Total
BEE Total assets 38.8% 38.8% 18.7% 37% 100.0%
BaE Total liabilities 38.8% 38.6% 18.8% 3.8% 100.0%
0.0% 0.2% ~0.1% ~0.1% 0.0%
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

30 Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Operational risk management

(e)

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.

The Bank’s risk management framework is established to control
risks at both corporate and departmental levels. The underlying
management principle is built upon a long-standing culture of high
integrity and risk awareness fostered by senior executives of the
Bank.

The framework consists of governing policies with control
measures to ascertain absolute compliance by all operating units.
These measures are directed, controlled and held to account by
operational management committees chaired by senior executives.
Regular reviews are performed by the committees to ensure proper
functioning of internal controls and to identify improvement
opportunities.

Furthermore, independent reviews are conducted by the Bank'’s
Internal Audit Department to measure the effectiveness of the
Bank’s system of internal controls. This department reports to the
Supervisory Council to ensure the framework is managed with high
standards of probity.

Capital management

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to support
the development of the Bank’s business and to meet the statutory
capital adequacy ratio. In addition to meeting the AMCM
requirements, the Bank’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Bank'’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Bank actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions. The amount of minimum
capital requirements held for credit, market and operational risks
are calculated in accordance with Basel Il requirements under the
AMCM regulations.
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31 ETIER

30 Financial risk management (continued)
(e) Capital management (Continued)

Capital is allocated to various activities of the Bank depending on
the risk taken by each business division. The Bank is subject to the
capital requirements of the AMCM for its regulatory supervision
purposes. The Bank has complied with all externally imposed
capital requirements throughout the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021, and are well above the minimum required ratio set
by the AMCM.

31 Staff Benefits

2022 2021

R R AE T A A Retirement benefit costs 15,100 11,582

R IE AN H 18 5] A1 2 5K ZAR1TH20014F1 A3
HERE T —EEREE - BTREREE
BPBREBEENEIHR - ZTEH
RAEEERLABRER  ZEFENE
ERATEBEE HELILAERERFARMK
HATEEEAER  ZA8THAER
WK REART -

32 AVEE
(@) ULAFEEFEZERMIA
FRENAFEEFENSRITARR
BEERAREERAR URDEAMN
AFEEFEEEEHHAAEMEZE
Wa AIEHENSRTA -

RFEEHFTERESR ITANTE
RAAMSEMRE R ERBEEL
Hit—REZTEH - KT TIIRF
BESRFEQAFEE EFRKRT
SHERFTERMTIERE:

() FIER 2EHEATEERIRE
BB 45 BT KO T 45 B CR & 38
) o

=

A defined contribution scheme was established on 3rd January, 2001
to cover all qualifying employees in Macau at various funding rates, in
accordance with the local practice and requirements. The costs of the
scheme are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred and
the assets of these schemes are held separately from the Bank. Any
forfeiture amount under the Scheme is refunded to the Bank when
the member leaves employment prior to the employer’s voluntary
contributions being vested fully.

32 Fair values
(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Financial instruments measured at fair value on an ongoing basis
include trading assets and liabilities and financial instruments
classified as financial instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income/available-for-sale.

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information. The
Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:

(i) Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market
for an identical instrument.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

32 Fair values (continued)
(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

(i) Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments
valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments
in markets that are considered less than active; or other
valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.

(iii) Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This category
includes all instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable market data and
the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments
that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments
where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions
are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

Fair values of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
are based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations.
For all other financial instruments that are not traded in the
active markets, the Bank determines fair values using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value of
expected future cash flows and discounted cash flow models
based on “no-arbitrage” principles, standard option pricing models
across the industry for vanilla derivative products. The objective of
valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that
reflects the price of the financial instrument at the reporting date
that would have been determined by market participants acting at
arm’s length.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

32 Fair values (continued)
(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable
market data. Hence, the reliability of the fair values measurement is
high. However, certain financial instruments are valued on the basis
of one or more significant market inputs that are not observable.
The fair value derived is more judgmental. “Not observable” does
not mean there is absolutely no market data available but there is
little or no current market data available from which to determine
the level at which an arm’s length transaction would likely occur.
Examples of observable inputs include foreign exchange spot and
forward rates, benchmark interest rate curves and volatility surfaces
for commonly traded option products. Examples of unobservable
inputs include volatility surfaces for less commonly traded option
products and correlations between market factors.

Availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces
the need for management judgement and estimation and also
reduces the valuation uncertainty associated with determination
of fair values. The availability varies depending on the products
and markets and is prone to changes based on specific events and
general conditions in the financial markets.

For more complex instruments, the Bank uses the broker pricing
service, which adopts proprietary valuation models, as inputs to a
fair value measurement. These models usually are developed from
recognised valuation models across the industry with some or all of
the inputs into these models being unobservable in the market.

Fair values are subject to a control framework that aims to ensure
that they are either determined, or validated, by a function
independent of the risk-taker. To this end, ultimate responsibility for
the determination of fair values lies with the Financial Management
Department (“FMD"). FMD establishes procedures governing
valuation, and is responsible for ensuring that these comply with all
relevant accounting standards.
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32 Fair values (continued)
(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)
The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair
value at the reporting date according to the level in the fair value

ZEmITA: hierarchy into which they are categorised:
2022
FEH EYES #35R A3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
REHNTEEE Recurring fair value measurements
BE Assets
EERREE Trading assets
-EERRTESRIAYL - Positive fair values of derivative financial instruments
FATER held for trading - 19,333 - 19,333
RPEFREMER Advances to customers and other accounts
-HRRARTERRIAL - Positive fair values of derivative financial instruments
EATEE held for hedging 3,114,758 3,733,322 1,379,830 8,227,910
MNAFEEFEEZZEHA  Financial assets measured at fair value through other
L2 Aka sREE comprehensive income
-EMEERZERER - AMCM monetary bill - 3,151,810 - 3,151,810
-EnEBES - Other debt securities 3,114,758 581,512 - 3,696,270
-ELTERES - Unlisted equity securities - - 1,379,830 1,379,830
3,114,758 3,733,322 1,379,830 8,227,910
af Liabilities
EEARER Trading liabilities
-BERBNTESBTIAY - Negative fair values of derivative financial instruments
BLYEE held for trading - 21,215 - 21,215
EBERER Other accounts and provisions
-HRRRTESRIAL - Negative fair values of derivative financial instruments
BRTEE held for hedging - 9,829 - 9,829
118 20225 5#H
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32 Fair values (continued)

(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

2021
T F21ER FIZHR At
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BEMATEETE Recurring fair value measurements
BE Assets
BERAREE Trading assets
-BEERBITESRIAYL - Positive fair values of derivative financial instruments
FRTER held for trading 3 14,742 - 14,745
RPEFRAMER Advances to customers and other accounts
-HRERTESBTIAL - Positive fair values of derivative financial instruments
FATER held for hedging - - - -
HEESHEAE Available-for-sale financial assets
-RFASERZERRE - AMCM monetary bills - 1,828,296 - 1,828,296
-EERES - Other debt securities 4,471,039 1,058,914 - 5,529,953
-ELETEEES - Unlisted equity securities - - 1,315,907 1,315,907
4,471,039 2,887,210 1,315,907 8,674,156
g8f Liabilities
EEARER Trading liabilities
-EERgITE2RIAYL - Negative fair values of derivative financial instruments
AATER held for trading 3 14,973 - 14976
bk Other liabilties
-HRRBTESRIAL - Negative fair values of derivative financial instruments
BRTEE held for hedging - 41,584 - 41,584
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32 Fair values (continued)
(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

() F1EREE2ZER2ER (i) Transfers between Level 1 and 2
RAFE - &8 T H104,720,000 During the year, MOP104,720,000 (2021: MOP99,816,000) of
BEATEAFEENEIZRE financial instruments were transferred from Level 1 to Level
Bz E25 45 (20214 : 99,816,000 2 and MOP99,584,000 (2021: Nil) of financial instruments
BT A& @/ IA were transferred from Level 2 to Level 1 of the fair value
99,584,0002 It £ A F(EEH hierarchy. The Bank'’s policy is to recognise transfers between
E2EREBREZF R Q0214 : levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
| RITZBERRBEHAR period in which they occur. The transfer occurs when quoted
RNHERAATEERSACHZE prices in active markets or inputs that are other than quoted
B BRRMBNRENIERE prices (directly or indirectly observable) for identical assets are
ENREBUAIIN(BEESEER available between different reporting dates.
BR)BBETRREAH ZHEA
E AR - BT8R -
(i) F3ZERZAFEE (ii) Level 3 fair values
FE3ER N FIEESFET Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
TRIFERFEBESEIZRZA The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning
FEEEHVERRARER balance to the ending balances for fair value measurements in
Z A Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
NATERE
GERHE
BETAEM
A HE 2HEHKEZ
tREE- tREE-
BERsH BERsH A5t
Financial assets
measured
at fair value
Available-for-  through other
sale financial comprehensive
assets - Equity income - Equity
securities securities Total
BE Assets
2002F1 BB &S As at 1 January 2022 1,315,907 - 1,315,907
B Transfers (1,315,907) 1,315,907 -
REMPERERER Changes in fair value recognised in the
ATEEEY other comprehensive income - 63,923 63,923
2022F 127318 & 8 As at 31 December 2022 - 1,379,830 1,379,830
2022F FF 3R



Y =EmATRT
— OCBCWING HANG

Bt 7% R 3} B &
Notes to the Financial Statements

(EPIBEF Tz s)r » Btk sk) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

32 A¥EE®S
@ UATPEEHBZSBMIE(S)
(i) EIZEJ/>AFEE)
FIZM Ty ATFEMETSEBE

32 Fair values (continued)
(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)
(ii) Level 3 fair values (Continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements:

B
HERR EXTOUBRERAE #HE
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs  Range
WATEEAEAEEHHFAAMEARRL mHLBRA AL EE BTSN 15%-20%
CREE/AIREEF ITEEES AE R
Financial assets measured at FVOCl/available-for-sale Market-comparable approach  Discount for lack of 15%-20%
unlisted equity securities marketability
mFx 1.73x
P/B Ratio 1.73x
EV/EBIT 4.6x - 31.97x
EV/EBIT 4.6x - 31.97x

AITRIEBT S LB I E - LAO)
MARKINEHNE  HENDEE
BN E: Q mFE - AREH
BEER/EEMFTUAFEER
ERHEEFHARMEELREZ
SREE/FIHEENFELTE
BEFZ RN FEEGRRZTISR
BT E)

022F (HERANEEEESR AT
HBhEEMFEAMBD) - BR
BENERRSHEAFARERNE
WAFEEE - mHEBEE
{h1E ¥ AR kA b (BIAE L)
hFE PEMEEEZ  FHK
EREERIESEREEET
& BHEEIERZ -

AFEEMNEEERZ TSR
MUAZZEMEEER - 712022
F1R2ANAE HEEMEETER
B TR - B IN5% E
A B EG AE GG K
WAORITHREY REERE
68,991,500 P9 7T (2021512 A31
B : 65,795,350)8F5 7 ) °

RTINS BENRAR S
BT HEZEREE - 8HEMN2022F
12A318 K2021F12A318 B &
FEEDTK -

For the market-comparable approach adopted by the Bank on
estimating the fair value of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income/available-for-sale
unlisted equity securities, the Bank applied: (1) the lower of
the price/earning ratios and enterprise value to earnings before
interest, and taxes; (2) price-to-book ratio. The result was
adjusted for lack of marketability discount.

The change from Embedded value approach to Market-
comparable approach (Price-to-book (“P/B"”) ratio) in 2022 for
the valuation as it results in a measurement that is equally
or more representative of fair value. The market approach
provides an indication of value by comparing a business,
business ownership interest, security, or intangible asset with
identical or comparable (that is similar) subjects for which price
information is available.

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the
discount for lack of marketability. At 31 December 2022,
it is estimated that with all other variables held constant,
a decrease/increase in significant unobservable inputs by
5% would have increased/decreased the Bank'’s investment
revaluation reserve by MOP68,991,500 (At 31 December
2021: MOP65,795,350).

The carrying amount of the Bank'’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021.
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32 Fair values (continued)
(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)
(ii) Level 3 fair values (Continued)
The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented in above.

(i) the fair value of demand deposits and savings accounts
with no specific maturity is assumed to be the amount
payable on demand at the reporting date.

(iii) the fair value of variable rate financial instruments is
assumed to approximate their carrying amounts and, in
the case of loans and unquoted debt securities, does not,
therefore, reflect changes in their credit quality, as the
impact of credit risk is recognised separately by deducting
the amount of the expected credit loss/impairment loss
and allowances from both the carrying amount and fair
value.

(iii) the fair value of fixed rate loans and mortgages carried at
amortised cost is estimated by comparing market interest
rates when the loans were granted with current market
rates offered on similar loans. Changes in the credit
quality of loans within the portfolio are not taken into
account in determining gross fair values, as the impact
of credit risk is recognised separately by deducting the
amount of the expected credit loss/impairment loss and
allowances from both the carrying amount and fair value.

(iv) the fair value of unquoted equity investments is
estimated, if possible, using applicable price/earnings
ratios for similar listed companies adjusted to reflect the
specific circumstances of the issuers.

33 Comparative information
Certain comparative figures had been reclassified to conform to current
period’s presentation. These reclassifications do not have an impact on
net profit or net asset value.
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UTREERZUBEREE  ERFTAREM The following unaudited disclosures of financial information are
eREBEER(TRMSER] FH 2 % & B # prepared to comply with the Guideline on the Disclosure of Financial
EiEsImER - Information issued by the Monetary Authority of Macau (“AMCM").

(&) ZEEHEEEZ2EARZTRZEE (a) Capital adequacy ratio of top consolidated

group
&8
Group
2022 2021
BAF B E Capital adequacy ratio 17.7% 17.6%
&= AR A B IR R ?‘Fﬁbﬂf&/\ﬁﬂﬁqf@%%@? The calculation of the regulatory capital and capital charges of the top
SRS (AR B EE B ER) B consolidated group are in accordance with the Monetary Authority
EEAARERES - of Singapore Notice to Banks No. 637 (Notice on Risk Based Capital

Adequacy Requirement) for Banks incorporated in Singapore.

(b) EZA< E i 4 B 15 (b) Components of own funds
2022 2021
BOE Core capital:
[ 6= Paid-up share capital 120,000 120,000
RBBERMNMELE ZEER Legal, statutory and other reserves
HihE#HS created by appropriation of

retained profits 304,200 304,200
BARRTF Profits brought forward 2,990,229 2,854,583
REEEEBER Current year eligible net profits 144,076 210,849
BB RBEE Total core capital 3,558,505 3,489,632
HRELX: Supplementary capital:
HrgEEhz@FES Reserves on revaluation of

own premises 51,610 51,610
—RERS General provision 204,708 227,737
e N Total supplementary capital 256,318 279,347
MRER: Deduction: - -
KMBRIBER 2 EEERES Total own funds after deduction 3,814,823 3,768,979
MRBEBAzABEESBBNRIERES 21K The calculation on the components and total amount of own funds after
FRSRPIS ERE012/935 @M E 1 BT E - deduction is in accordance with Notice No. 012/93-AMCM.
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() EXRE
() BRZRLE

(c) Capital adequacy

(i) Capital adequacy ratio

2022 2021

BT R = Capital adequacy ratio 18.68% 15.94%

BARRLHREZEBRMASERS
011720155 B & B AT HE -

(i) THERERZERER

The calculation on the capital adequacy ratio is in accordance with
Notice No.011/2015-AMCM.

(ii) Market risk capital requirement

2022 2021

mimREkR s ERENR: The market risk capital requirements for
— I & = b — Interest rate risk - -
- i 7 & B - Equity position risk - -
— HNEE & B — Foreign exchange risk 9,436 8,984
— 7 on [ B — Commodity risk - -
In#E T % R e 4B R Weighted market risk exposures 9,436 8,984

(i) TETRZFERBRMNESHE

(iii) Credit risk weighted amounts of derivatives

2022 2021
fE & 4 Exchange rate contracts 1,216 -
FEIBEHE L Interest rate swap contracts 17,576 5,458
RERBELD Equity contracts 322 252

19,114 5,710

FTEE BRI EE TR 2 BB
BHIREEE BiBEF011/20155 2
BAFBZHEREHERBARRK S
HFEEHAMR - BIHA - BXE54 -
FlxRipH REBBEOAAAZRAR
INEN F0% £100% °

HEBBL RAREBFERHLE
@

124 20225 5%

Credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed
in accordance with AMCM Guideline Notice 011/2015-AMCM on
capital adequacy and depends on the status of the counterparty
and the maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range from
0% to 100% for exchange rate, interest rate swap and equity
contracts.

These amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral
netting arrangements.
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(d) EE =B (d) Credit risk
() BERSEZESHEHALZENM (i) Maturity analysis on certain assets and liabilities based on
HEREI2ENEEREEEAN the residual contractual maturity at the reporting date
PR 2 #7 &
2022
MARNME  3EAML  1ENE i
PRER AR E3EAR  E1ER @3FR 3ENE R 48
Over Over Over
Tmonth 3 months 1 year
Repayable ~ Within1  but within  but within  but within Over  Indefinite
on demand month 3 months 1 year 3 years 3 years period Total
BE Assets
Z5ZRREFETNEH  Trade bils, loans and advances
to customers 87,221 1,270,856 375329 2398710 3525171 12,529,281 - 20,186,568
BeREMBTEETE . Cash and balances with and loans
HRESAHETALT  and advances to banks 578,682 107,989 - - - - 390730 1077401
HRMBERRR/ Securities issued by Macao SAR
FEMEERELZESF  Govemment andior AMCM - 84482 34004 2752883 95,636 - - 3,457,065
FERRE Certficates of deposit held - - - - - - - -
Bt A Other securities - 40,105 282,552 337,219 2,603,170 127969 1379830 4,770,845
£ Liabilities
ROFAEREMSHBE  Deposits and balances of banks and
FRhs other financial institutions 100 - 120461 - - - - 120561
RERERT Deposits from public sector entities 489 - - - - - - 489
BRREBRATE Deposits and balances from holding
and associated companies 385 2,243,125 264,772 883,623 - 56,031 - 3,451,407
BENERE Certificates of deposits issued - - 393478 - - - - 393478
FBORFEPER Deposits from non-bank customers 12,746,135 2,424,867 2,617454 4513206 210,825 - - 22512487
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Unaudited Supplementary Information

(KX BPIMEF oz 2l » Fit SN (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
d)EERE @) (d) Credit risk (continued)

() BERSEZESHNEHALZENM (i) Maturity analysis on certain assets and liabilities based
HEREI2ENEEREEEAN on the residual contractual maturity at the reporting date
BRI R(E) (Continued)

201
WHAME  3EANE  1EME &9
PRER  MEAR E3EAR BER E3ER 3EHE il BE
QOver QOver QOver
Tmonth 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within 1 butwithin -~ butwithn  but within Over  Indefinite
on demand month 3 months 1 year 3 years 3 years period Total
EE Assets
Z5ZRREFETNEHT  Trade bil, loans and advances
to customers 19,825 1,776,662 838,025 2174200 3964366 13,576,789 - 22,349,867
BeREMHTREETE . Cash and balances with and loans
HRESAHETALT  and advances to banks 6478 105127 - - - - B0 1194065
HRMBERRR/ Securities issued by Macao SAR
FEFEERELZESF  Govemment andior AMCM - 439987 54850 833460 - - - 1828297
REERNE Certificates of deposit held - - - 103460 - - - 103460
Bt A Other securities - - 507,371 1323477 3,131,530 464,114 1315907 6,742,399
£ Liabilities
ROFAEREMSHBE  Deposits and balances of banks and
BRREH other financial institutions - - 250,000 - - - - 250,000
RERERT Deposits from public sector entities 2098 1,650,436 1,443,686 - - - - 3096220
BREEBARNNE Deposits and balances from holding
and associated companies 4193 48942 899,380 405,937 - 55,292 - 1,413,744
BENERE Certificates of deposits issued - 481880 1685903 882,204 - - - 3049987
EROAERFRER Deposits from non-bank customers 15125976 2,102,120 1737817 1841982 863 7 - 20,808,765
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(AR F Tz 7 - Bt b o) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
d)EERE ) (d) Credit risk (continued)
(i) BHEEDN (ii) Analysis on past due assets
RITRAIXEERIBR T EERIFHR Advances to banks are only made to banks with good credit rating.
TR - BEFEXRMEELEZoMTN The credit quality of advances to customers can be analysed as
™~ follows:
2022 2021
EPENBE Gross advances to customers
- HIt IER (B — neither past due nor impaired 19,421,666 22,321,163
- B EB IE R (A - past due but not impaired 725,090 236,397
- BE - impaired 92,427 21,746
20,239,183 22,579,306
HpRERFPER: Of the impaired advances to customers:
- 3fE AT =3 months or less 63,496 249
- 6fE A3k LATE3ME A A £ - 6 months or less but over 3 months 13,935 8,768
-1 AT E6ME AN £ — 1 year or less but over 6 months 2,677 2,183
-1 E — Over 1 year 12,319 10,546
92,427 21,746
KOTRBBEMFSERZEREREFE The Bank classifies the advances to customers in accordance with
Bl the AMCM requirements.
BEHREFREZEFEREER DTN The aging analysis of advances to customers that are past due but
D not impaired is as follows:
2022 2021
BEEERBEZEFERBE  Gross advances to customers
that are past due but not impaired
- B EA3ME A AT — past due 3 months or less 725,090 236,397
M2022F12A31H » RiTEEFEE H As at 31 December 2022, there were no advances to customers
BAEGRRERHRIRENETEFER that would be past due or impaired had the terms not been
(20214128318 : &) o renegotiated (31 December 2021: Nil).
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Unaudited Supplementary Information

(KX BPIMEF oz 2l » Fit SN (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
d)EERE @) (d) Credit risk (continuea)

(i) EEREEPEZEEEESM (iii) Credit quality analysis under regulatory asset classification
TR ABIFBRTEL ZERMEK The following loans and advances to non bank customers and other
REMEBRIBEMEMEEZRRESE assets are broken down into major classes of assets respectively
BER20211F A EC EERR KR based on the asset classification required by Notice no. 012/2021
AR BEL DB 2B - AMCM.

2022

ENETE FRER EE]E @

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BeRFMBETEEFRE - Cash and balances with and loans

PR EFME R and advances to banks
EEH Pass 1,077,417 - - 1,077,417
B EHEREX Less: Expected credit loss (16) - - (16)
1,077,401 - - 1,077,401
RPEFRBAR Loans and advances to customers
ERE Pass 17,101,296 2,994,387 - 20,095,683
Cha Special mention - 100,869 - 100,869
R Substandard - - 19,674 19,674
A Doubtful - - 10,408 10,408
BRE Loss - - 12,549 12,549
woEEEREX Less: Expected credit loss (26,043) (21,583) (4,989) (52,615)
17,075,253 3,073,673 37,642 20,186,568

BRERBITR/SEMN  Securities issued by Macao SAR
CREERETZES Government and/or AMCM

E®HE Pass 3,151,810 - - 3,151,810

HoEBEREX Less: Expected credit loss - - - -
3,151,810 - - 3,151,810

HiE% Other securities

EEH Pass 4,785,971 290,129 - 5,076,100

wEHEREX Less: Expected credit loss (1,098) (3,062) - (4,160)
4,784,873 287,067 - 5,071,940
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Unaudited Supplementary Information

(KX BPIMEF oz 2l » Fit SN (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
d)EERK® (d) Credit risk (continued)
(i) EEREEDEZ2EEEZIN(E) (iii) Credit quality analysis under regulatory asset classification
UTHRBIEBRTEFERKEME (Continued)
HEHFREELEBREITEEEERIE The value of collateral value for the loans and advances to non-
o8 2 A4 bank customers broken down into major classes of assets is as
follows,
2022
RISEREE KFmEE HBEHEREX
Outstanding Collateral Expected
balance value credit loss
FE8 Pass 20,095,683 18,292,890 (47,037)
EZpE | Special Mention 100,869 96,590 (1,120)
KB AR Substandard 19,674 19,674 -
At fA Doubtful 10,408 7,230 (3,834)
‘L Loss 12,549 11,925 (624)
20,239,183 18,428,309 (52,615)

(e) FMEE 2 B

2022
ISk il ARY EY Hip g &t
Chinese Other
moP HK$ Renminbi us$ currencies Total
RREGE Total net long positions 27,611 - - 602 1,485 29,698
FEEAE Total net short positions - 20,363 9,238 - 97 29,698
27,611 (20,363) (9,239) 602 1388 -
2021
EFE B AEE e HEH CHI
Chinese Other
MoP HKS Renminbi Us$ currencies Total
RRELE Total net long positions 16,183 - - 12,012 812 29,007
FEEAE Total net short positions - 20,030 8,591 - 386 29,007
16,183 (20,030) (8,591) 12,012 426 -
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(EPIBEF Tz s)r » Btk sk) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

(e) HMEE & B ()

(e) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

2022
ikl AR in &%
THRMAR THRMAR THRMAR THRMAR
REEE Spot assets 12,304,753 617,857 4,785,119 17,707,729
REafR Spot liabilities 12,325,116 627,095 4,784,517 17,736,728
BEHEA Forward purchases - - - -
BB Forward sales - - - -
(20,363) (9,238) 602 (28,999)
2021
ok ARE ETT A%
TRMT TRMT TRMT TRMT
BEEE Spot assets 13,330,641 565,381 6,410,464 20,306,486
BEBR Spot liabilities 13,278,382 573,972 6,470,739 20,323,093
EHEA Forward purchases - - 72,287 72,287
REAE N Forward sales 72,289 - - 72,289
(20,030) (8,591) 12,012 (16,609)
f) REhE & (f) Liquidity risk
2022 2021
BHEFARER & Average minimum weekly cash in hand 618,861 665,079
TR ® R Average weekly cash in hand 1,034,678 872,423
FHARRERSDEE Average month-end specified liquid
assets 7,671,917 9,410,333
2022 2021
% %
FHARBEREE EREAR Average month-end ratio of specified
BELE liquid assets to total basic liabilities 33.5 381
—EAFHREE S L E Average one-month liquidity ratio 50.5 475
“RAFARBES X Average three-months liquidity ratio 42.2 40.3
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Summary Financial Statements

(RIEBPIE G R AFEHIZEE++AIF (in accordance with the Article 75 of the Financial System Act of Macao and AMCM Circular No.006/
R AP % 5 E 52 F006/B/2022-DSB/ B/2022-DSB/AMCM)

AMCM % 2 [ X 1)

MEEERERR-FC

— % BALANCO RESUMIDO EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE

+=—A=+—H 2022
2022 2021
BT BFTT
MOP MOP
BE ACTIVO
BeRGEHRITAZE  ARIETR Caixa e disponibilidades em bancos, bancos
HAth & BB 5UR centrais e outras instituicdes de crédito 1,077,401,451 1,194,064,528
BEERBEE Activos detidos para negociacao 19,332,640 14,745,435
BEPBRREAMIRIE Adiantamentos a clientes e outras contas a
receber 20,442,267,994 22,539,711,439
W R RIERA 7 E%T AR K Valores devidos pela accionista controladora final,

EE =N accionista imediata e outras subsidirias 2,072,978,659 1,300,498,435
ﬂfﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ@ Activos financeiros disponiveis para venda — 8,674,155,682
UAFEEFZEEEZEHHA Activos financeiros ao justo valor através de outro

H 2l sz eMEE rendimento integral 8,227,910,394 —
EWETEEE Activos fixos tangiveis 591,157,191 637,370,998
BREE Total do activo 32,431,048,329 34,360,546,517
& PASSIVO
RITAEREMESRBETRR Depésitos e saldos de bancos e outras instituicdes

Fg s financeiras 120,561,695 250,000,000
BEPEM EH - BEREMER Depésitos a ordem, a prazo, de poupanca e

outros de clientes 22,512,976,160 23,904,985,210
BRITEFHRE Certificados de deposito emitidos 398,477,600 3,049,987,402
EER%ERE Passivos detidos para negociacdo 21,215,427 14,975,735
AR ERTR 1 Impostos sobre o rendimento a pagar 61,148,881 50,024,613
BELERIEERE Passivos por impostos diferidos 205,426,403 214,139,684
Hh BR18 R Outras contas a pagar e provisées 301,534,269 252,414,020
JER SRR AR  EEBIER AR KL Valores devidos & accionista controladora final,

EESGIENGIE S accionista imediata e outras subsidirias 3,451,406,818 1,413,744,492
mafsE Total do passivo 27,072,747,253 29,150,271,156
R CAPITAL PROPRIO
AR Capital social 120,000,000 120,000,000
—MRFEE Reserva geral 184,200,000 184,200,000
EERE Reserva legal 120,000,000 120,000,000
Bihf#E Reserva de reavaliacao 1,509,699,909 1,570,350,720
—REERE Reserva regulamentar geral 155,680,356 —
BFEBERE Reserva regulamentar especifica — —
R#BETT Resultados acumulados 3,268,720,811 3,215,724,641
ERAH Total do capital préprio 5,358,301,076 5,210,275,361
BERESHEE Total do passivo e do capital préprio 32,431,048,329 34,360,546,517
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Summary Financial Statements

(RIEBPIE G R AFEHIZEE++AIF (in accordance with the Article 75 of the Financial System Act of Macao and AMCM Circular No.006/
R AP % 5 E 52 F006/B/2022-DSB/ B/2022-DSB/AMCM)

AMCM % 2 [ X 1)

“EICEBERESER

DEMONSTBACAO RESUMIDA DOS RESULTADOS
DO EXERCICIO FINDO EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE

2022
2022 2021
BT SR P IT
MOP MOP
B A Rendimentos de juros 749,046,556 644,410,112
F B X H Despesas com juros (206,324,016) (67,665,415)
FR B WA Rendimentos de juros liquidos 542,722,540 576,744,697
R E KA WA Rendimentos de servicos e comissoes 107,058,487 136,021,575
REERMAE N Custos com servicos e comissoes (8,639,371) (10,349,889)
BREEBERBAESBAZRE Rendimentos de servicos e comissdes
liquidos 98,419,116 125,671,686
& B A Rendimentos de dividendos 16,466,733 9,759,263
H AU A Outros rendimentos 16,962,835 39,085,208
Hpg £ WA Outros rendimentos operacionais 131,848,684 174,516,157
BETH Despesas Operacionais (347,696,809) (340,095,956)
NBRFBEHERAEAELX HW{EEKLK  Resultado operacional antes de perdas
EHAEEEN esperadas e de imparidade 326,874,415 411,164,898
BERMBAR 2 REEKREE Perdas de imparidade e provises em
o] £ empréstimos e adiantamentos — (824,000)
TEHERBARREMEERE Alteracoes nas perdas esperadas de crédito e
BERAMEE perdas de imparidade de crédito (9,166,304) —
B i A1 % F Resultado antes de impostos 317,708,111 410,340,898
HIE Impostos (39,215,977) (49,199,382)
FRATDEFARITEZRR Resultado liquido do exercicio atribuivel
2 35 F aos acionistas do Banco 278,492,134 361,141,516
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(RIEBPIE G R AFEHIZEE++AIF (in accordance with the Article 75 of the Financial System Act of Macao and AMCM Circular No.006/
R AP % 5 E 52 F006/B/2022-DSB/ B/2022-DSB/AMCM)

AMCM % 12 F X %)
—EC_FMEZEKEX DEMONSTRACAO RESUMIDA DO RENDIMENTO
INTEGRAL DO EXERCICIO FINDO EM 31 DE
DEZEMBRO DE 2022
2022 2021
BT SRFITT
MOP MOP
FRRER Resultado liquido do exercicio 278,492,134 361,141,516
FREMEZAKRZ (RHEZKRLES Outro rendimento integral do exercicio
HREE) (depois de impostos e ajustamentos)
BAUTESBEERRZER Itens que ndo serdo reclassificados para
resultados
— EHETTHEZRT) B — (Déficit)/excedente na reavaliacdo das
instalacoes do banco (33,874,228) 8,242,845
— RERIE — Impostos diferidos 4,065,410 (989,830)
(29,808,818) 7,253,015
— UAFEEFEBEHEEZSHT A — Instrumentos de capital mensurados
Hih2EREZ 2 EREFES ao valor justo através de outro
rendimento integral
— QT EEE — Alteracoes valor justo 63,923,191 —
— B IR — Impostos diferidos (7,670,783) —
56,252,408 —
HEnekEeEsEERm2EA Itens passiveis de reclassificacdo para
resultados
— At ESRERE — Ativos financeiros disponiveis para
venda
— AEEEEZD — Alteracoes de justo valor
— BBHEFHF — em titulos de divida — 15,797,169
— BB — em titulos de capital — (134,723,898)
—HABERRK — Transferéncia para a demonstracdo dos
resultados
—REZWE — Ganhos em alienacoes — (24,239,240)
— BT IE — Impostos diferidos — 17,179,917

— (125,986,052)

Annual Report 2022 133



Y E=EATRT
—= OCBCWING HANG

GE:ZE EES
Summary Financial Statements

(RIEBPIE G R AFEHIZEE++AIF (in accordance with the Article 75 of the Financial System Act of Macao and AMCM Circular No.006/
R AP % 5 E 52 F006/B/2022-DSB/ B/2022-DSB/AMCM)
AMCM 5 12 ] X 14#)

“ECFHEZEWER®  DEMONSTRACAO RESUMIDA DO RENDIMENTO
INTEGRAL DO EXERCICIO FINDO EM 31 DE

DEZEMBRO DE 2022 (continued)

2022 2021
BT SR P TT
MOP MOP
— UAFEEFEBEZEHFT A — Instrumentos de divida mensurados ao
Hth2ERE 2 EBHES valor justo através de outro
rendimento integral
— QT EEE — Alteracbes de justo valor (93,741,674) —
—EBABERE — Transferéncia para a demonstracao dos
resultados
—RE W= — Ganhos em alienacoes (493,535) —
— EHERBX — Perdas esperadas de crédito (3,458,639) —
— IRERIE — Impostos diferidos 11,308,225 —
(86,385,623) —
— BHBRERF — Lucros n&o apropriados
— RI7174E — Instalacoes do banco
— RERIE — Impostos diferidos 1,010,430 1,005,280
FRARBEZE2HMZEEE Outro rendimento integral do exercicio,
liquido de impostos (58,931,603) (117,727,757)
FRUTBRFARTERRRZ Total do rendimento integral do
ZEHREEE exercicio atribuivel aos acionistas do
Banco 219,560,531 243,413,759
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INVENTARIO DE PARTICIPACOES FINANCEIRAS
EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2022

M% SRR
—®=-=%+=A=+-A

KR EBRA =x REEE Bt
Tipo/Sector de actividade Nome Valor do balanco  Valor percentual
BRERMH—AEBKRESHE (RFMT)
Accoes/Quotas por sector de actividade (MoP)
RAIT R R HE b 172 e RBERADF
Bancos, seguros e outros servicos Companhia de Seguros

Luen Fung Hang, S.AR.L. 68,072,000 12.00%

Luen Fung Hang-Vida, S.A.
BeTASRRBRIRMHER DA
Companhia de Seguros 45,600,000 10.50%

A 5 TOTAIS 113,672,000

Quadro a publicar ao abrigo do artigo 75.0 do R.J.S.F.
RIBBFSMEREENEELTEKZAS
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List of Branches

BT 1 B 2415% Main Branch 241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro

AEMmRIT ST ESKSHK Hong Kai Si Branch 85 Avenida Horta e Costa

HRDT 7 F & 55 B 19-215% San Kiu Branch 19-21 Estrada de Adolfo Loureiro

EDEBAT BEHFEEEI2RCF Hak Sa Van Branch 32C-F Estrada de Marginal do Hipodromo

ABLAT B 3% 2 K #5338 5% Toi San Branch 338 Avenida de AT. Barbosa

BHEEST SEEH29%A Kou Tei Vu Kai Branch 29A Rua Pedro Coutinho R/C

HEDT ¥ %\ H11955% lao Hon Branch 195 Rua Oito do Bairro lao Hon

ST DT B IETS-T795% Ho Pin San Kai Branch 75-79 Rua Almirante Sergio

KEFRE AT KRR A7356-36655 /£ 5 Flower City Branch 356-366, Rua de Evora, Edif. Lei Fung, Taipa
MexE

FORAT FOFRREEES2865 San Hau On Branch 286 Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao R/C

HWFEDT BMKEK309-31555EEE  Fai Chi Kei Branch Avenida do Conselheiro Borja Nos. 309-315,
FRHEHMTD Mayfair Garden Bloco 5D R/C
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